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February 1, 2022

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Colts Neck Township

Monmouth County, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of the Colts Neck Township School District for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2021, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the
Board of Education (Board). To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is
accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly, the financial
position and results of operations of the various funds and account groups of the District. All disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District's financial activities have been
included.

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial,
statistical, and single audit. The introductory section includes this fransmittal letier, the District's
organizational chart and a list of principal ordeals. The financial section includes the general-purpose
financial statements and schedules, as well as the auditor’s report thereon. The statistical section includes
selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multiyear basis. The District is
required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Federal Uniform
Guidance and the state Treasury Circular Letter 15-08 OMB, "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of
Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid Payments." Information related to this single audit, including
the auditor's report on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations
and findings and recommendations, are included in the single audit section of this report.

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES:

Colts Neck Township School District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the
GASB as established by NCGA Statement No. 3. All funds of the District are included in this report. The
Colts Neck Township Board of Education and its schools constitute the District's reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels Pre-K through grade
8. These include regular and special education, and preschool-disabled classes. The District completed
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the 2020-21 fiscal year with a total enrollment of 966 students, which is 36 students below the previous
year's ending enrollment. The following details the changes in the student enroliment of the District over
the last fifteen years.

Fiscal Student Percent
Year Enrollment* Change
2020-21 947 -3.27%
2019-20 979 1.13%
2018-19 968 1.36%
2017-18 955 1.81%
2016-17 938 -1.67%
2015-16 954 0.74%
2014-15 947 -4.8%
2013-14 995 -8.9%
2012-13 1,093 -6.6%
2011-12 1,170 -3.8%
2010-11 1,216 -6.8%
2009-10 1,304 -3.4%
2008-09 1,350 -1.8%
2007-08 1,374 -4.8%
2006-07 1,443 -2.5%

*Qctober 15th total ‘on-roll’ count of fiscal year.

2. ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK:

The Colts Neck Township Public School System is in the east central part of Monmouth County. The
township covers 32 square miles and has a population of approximately 9,957 who reside mainly in single-
family homes and are above average, socio-economically.

The school system is Pre-K through 8 with three schools, an administration building, and a bus
transportation building. The total resident student population as of June 18, 2021 was 961. Since 2006-
07, the student enroliment has decreased in the district by approximately thirty-four percent (34%). To
better understand the population changes in the community, the Board of Education has commissioned a
new professional demographic study that is forthcoming. Demographic studies use a basic cohort survival
projection methodology to make informed assumptions about population changes within the school
community and their impact on enroliment.

3. MAJOR INITIATIVES:
The Colts Neck Township Board of Education is extremely proud of its ongoing efforts to provide its

students with a thorough and efficient education through which they have opportunities to reach their
highest level of scholastic achievement. The district delivers a rigorous and engaging curriculum designed
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to meet the educational and developmental needs of its students. A robust balanced literacy program,
founded upon the constructs of Readers and Writers Workshop, is the foundation upon which learning
ensues. The district utilizes resources from the Center for the Collaborative Classroom in the form of
Making Meaning (K-5) for reading comprehension and Systematic Instruction in Phonological
Awareness, Phonics, and Sight Words (SIPPS), to provide a systematic approach to decoding. The district
facilitates Multi-Sensory SIPPS, Project Read, Leveled Literacy Instruction (I.LI), and Orton Gillingham
as tier 2 interventions. The district also facilitates a Wilson Reading System as a tier 3 intervention for
eligible students. Our EnVisions 2020 (K-5) and Big Ideas (6-8) mathematics programs stress the
development of critical thinking skills and overall problem solving as set forth within the New Jersey
Student Learning Standards. Advanced mathematics is offered for middle school students. Sixth graders
have advanced or accelerated options, and 7th and 8th graders have high school leveled options; Algebra
I is offered in grade 7 and Algebra I or Geometry is offered in grade 8, Our K-5 science program consists
of a unique blend of grade-level units of study, lab time, and Engineering is Elementary kits developed
by the Museum of Science, Boston. Additionally, the district facilitated Innovation Labs at all three
schools where design and engineering skills are introduced and developed,

The district is invested in developing and continuing personalized learning with students enrolled in grades
2 through 8. Goals for this initiative are as follows: promote active engagement for all students; create
flexible pathways based upon individual student needs; encourage student autonomy; and develop
learning experiences that are both meaningful and relevant. The district also utilized various digital
resources to provide for blended learning opportunities. Programs such as RazKids, Newsela, and IXL
provided platforms through which students engage with individualized growth measures, adaptive
questioning, goal setting, content, and critical thinking activities.

In grades 6-8, students are exposed to three marking periods of grade-level NJSLS Science- aligned
curricula and one marking period of a Project Lead the Way (PLTW) - Gateway STEM Course. Students
in grade 6 participate in Design and Modeling while students in grade 7 engage in the district’s Robotics
and Ecosystems course. Grade 8 students study science through problem solving in the district’s Medical
Detectives course, In addition to the aforementioned learning experiences, the district has added two
science elective courses, Aviation and Flight and Plant Science. The Plant Science course utilizes the
school’s greenhouse that was previously donated by the Colts Neck PTO.

The district is equally proud of its offering content-based enrichment in mathematics and language arts as
well as enrichment opportunities through related arts. Enrichment activities involve the alignment of
courses such as computer programs, art, music, media studies, health and physical education to
extracurticular offerings that includes clubs, band, chorus, and sports teams. In addition, supplemental
courses are offered through an ESEA/Title V/ESSER-funded, Before and After School Programs. These
federally funded programs allow students to receive targeted instruction before and after school hours on
a specific content area or skill for a designated period of time. Students are grouped for participation in
these programs by targeted academic needs as demonstrated through multiple measures of performance
data.
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The district was proud to offer to all students, K-8, a Summer Bridge Program, The 2021 Summer Bridge
Program was an in-person, summer learning experience for students currently enrolled in grades K-8 that
focused on strengthening prior-year knowledge and skills in language arts, mathematics, and social &
emotional learning. In 2022, the district will expand its Summer Bridge offerings to include vocal music,
instrumental music, and science, As a result of the district receiving the state’s Addressing Student
Learning Loss Grant, participation in the Summer Bridge program was free for all students.

The district continued to utilize an online curriculum mapping program, Atlas Rubicon, to provide district
stakeholders greater access to district curricula and pacing guides. The district remains committed to its
whole-child approach to education inclusive of social and emotional learning experiences. In 20-21, the
district renewed its commitment to being a mindful school district with support from a Mindfulness
Consultant. This consultant works directly with staff and students to facilitate Mindfulness learning,
increase self-awareness, empathy, self-regulation and increase the sense of community. Our Mindfulness
Coordinator also supports staff'in their efforts in working with their students to build better and meaningful
relationships and interpersonal skills.

To support teachers in their design for differentiation of instruction and the development of small student
instructional groups, the district utilized the data warehouse program, LinkIt! This system allows the
district to store all students’ assessment data in one place for purposes of creating meaningful and useful
reports for staff to use in their design of instruction. Data reports from LinkIt!, including Fingertip and
Navigator Reports, are used to further communicate specific data points of students’ learning. This also
includes our ELL data for the district’'s WIDA student assessment results, In addition, the district is
working in partnership with Linkit! to incorporate an Intervention Manager component where the district
will be able to streamline and enhance the multi-tiered system of support to help students reach their
individual behavioral and academic goals.

4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS:

As arecipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring that an
adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations
related to those programs. This internal confrol structure is also subject to periodic evaluation by the
District management,

As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the
internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance programs,
as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS:
In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The objective of

these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted
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for the general fund, the special revenue fund, and the debt service fund. Project length budgets are
approved for the capital improvements accounted for in the capital project funds. The final budget amount
as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding commitments on a line-item basis. Open
encumbrances at year end are either cancelled or are included as re-appropriations of fund balance in the
subsequent year. Those amounts to be re-appropriated are reported as reservations of fund balances, June
30, 2021.

6. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS:

The District's accounting records reflect generally accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the District is organized
on the basis of funds and account groups. These funds and account groups are explained in "Notes to the
Financial Statements,” Note 1.

7. DEBT ADMINISTRATION:

As of June 30, 2021, the District's outstanding debt issues included $8,780,000.00 of general obligation
bonds.

8. CASH MANAGEMENT:

The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as detailed in "Notes to the
Financial Statements", Note 2. The District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit
public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit
Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a
loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The law requires governmental
units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in New Jersey, where the funds are secured
in accordance with the Act.

9. RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board carried various forms of insurance, including but not limited to general liability, automobile
liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property and contents, and fidelity
bonds.

10. OTHER INFORMATION:

State statutes require an annual audit by independent Certified Public Accountants or Registered
Municipal Accountants. The Board selected the accounting firm of Suplee, Clooney & Company. In
addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the
requirements of the Federal Uniform Guidance and state Treasury Circular Letter 15-08 OMB. The
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auditor's report on the general-purpose financial statements and combining and individual fund statements
and schedules is included in the financial section of this report. The auditor's reports related specifically
to the single audit are included in the single audit section of this report.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Colts Neck Township Board of Education
for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the school district and
thereby contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of our financial operation., The
preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services
of the Business Office personnel.
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Superintendent of Schools
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Vincent S. Marasco
Business Administrator/Board Secretary
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SuPLEE, CLOONEY & CoMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122
Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info#dscnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education

Township of Colts Neck School District
County of Monmouth

Township of Colts Neck, New Jersey 07722

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, and each major fund of the Township of Colts Neck School District, County of
Monmouth, State of New Jersey (the "District”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, audit requirements prescribed by the Division
of Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and State of New Jersey OMB Circular
15-08 "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid.” Those
standards and provisions require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

10
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounis and
disciosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the District's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each
major fund of the District as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position, and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter
Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 1 to the basic financial statements, in 2021, the District adopted
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. Our opinions are
not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management's Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison information in Exhibit C-1 through
C-3, the schedules related to accounting and reporting for pensions in Exhibit L-1 through L-4 and the
schedules related to accounting and reporting for postretirement benefits other than pensions (OPEB)
on Exhibit M-1 and M-2 are presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain lmited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

11
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Other Information

Cur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements. The accompanying suppiementary
information schedules such as the introductory section, combining statements and individual fund
financial statements, the statistical section and the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and
State Financial Assistance, as listed in the table of contents, as required by the Uniform Guidance,
State of New Jersey’'s OMB Circular 15-08, "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants,
State Grants and State Aid,” and the State of New Jersey, Depariment of Education, Division of
Finance, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and the Schedules of Expenditures of
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance, as listed in the table of contents, as required by the
Uniform Guidance, State of New Jersey's OMB Circular 15-08, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of
Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid,” and the State of New Jersey, Department of Education,
Division of Finance is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generaily accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and
individual fund financial statements, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state
financial assistance are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

The other information, such as the introductory and statistical sections, has not been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 1, 2022, on our consideration of the Township of Colts Neck School District's internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’'s internal control over financial reporting

and compliance.
Jw&q %4 dlm,

CERTIFIED'PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Hoip W

PUBLIC SCHOOIL. ACCOUNTANT NO. 948

February 1, 2022
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TOWNSHIP OF COLTS NECK SCHOOL DISTRICT
COLTS NECK, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED

The Management's Discussion and Analysis of the Township of Colts Neck School District (the
“District”) offers readers of the District's financial statements a narrative overview of the financial
activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. The intent of this discussion is {o look at the
District’s financial performance as a whole; therefore, readers should also review the transmittal
lefter at the front of this report, along with the District's financial statements and notes to the
financial statements to enhance their understanding of the District’s financial performance.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of the Required Supplementary
Information (RSI) specified in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) Statement
Number 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis of State and
Local Governments. Certain comparative information between the current fiscal year (2020-2021)
and the prior fiscal year (2019-2020) is required to be presented in the MD&A. In fiscal year 2021
the District implemented GASB Statement No. 84- Fiduciary Activities. Prior fiscal year 2020
information was restated where information was available.
Financial Highlights

in the District-Wide Financial Statements:

¢ Net position of Governmental Activities increased $1,939,761.43 or 11.51%

¢ Net position of the Business-type Activities decreased by $59,304.69 or 57.65%.

In the Major Fund Financial Statements:

+ Governmental fund revenues exceed expenditures by $871,907.35.

* Among governmental funds, the General Fund's fund balance increased $909,841.48.
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TOWNSHIP OF COLTS NECK SCHOOL DISTRICT
COLTS NECK, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED

Overview of the Financial Statements

This Annual Comprehensive Financial Report ("ACFR") consists of three parts: Management's
Discussion and Analysis (this section), The Basic Financial Statements, and Required
Supplementary Information. The Basic Financial Statements include two kinds of statements that
present different views of the District, District—wide Financial Statements and Fund Financial
Statements.

» District-wide Financial Statements provide both short-term and long-term information about
the District’s overall financial status.

¢ Major Fund Financial Statements report the District's operations in more detail than the
District-wide statements on individual parts of the District, the Governmental Funds and
Proprietary Funds.

» Governmental Funds Statements tell how basic services such as regular and special
education were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending.

¢ Proprietary Funds Statements offer short and long-term financial information about the
activities the District operates like a business, which include food services.

The notes to financial statements are also inciuded, which are an integral part of the financial
statements. The information in the notes provides detailed data on the District's financial
operations.

Required supplementary information further explains and supports the financial statements with a
comparison of the District's budget for the year.
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TOWNSHIP OF COLTS NECK SCHOOL DISTRICT
COLTS NECK, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED

District-Wide Financial Statements

The District-wide Financial Statements report information about the District as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net
position includes all of the District's assets and liabilities. All current year's revenue and expenses
are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or disbursed.

The District-wide Financial Statements report the District's net position and how they have
changed. Net position, the difference between the District's assets and liabilities, is one way to
measure the District's financial health or position. Over time, increases or decreases in the
District’'s net position are an indicator of whether its financial position has improved or diminished.
The causes of this change may be a result of many factors, some financial and some not. Non-
financial factors include the District's property tax base, current laws in New Jersey restricting
revenue growth, facility condition, required educational programs and other factors.

in the District-wide Financial Statements, the District's activities are divided into two categories,
governmental and business-type activities.

s Governmental activities - All of the District's programs and services are reporied here
including, but not limited to regular and special education instruction, support services,
operation and maintenance of plant facilities, pupil transportation and extracurricular
activities. Property taxes and state formula aid finance most of these activities.

+ Business-type activities - These services are provided on a charge for goods or services
basis to recover all the expenses of the goods or services provided. District charges fees
to help it cover the costs of certain services it provided. The food service & preschool
tuition accounts are reported as business activities.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District's funds, focusing
on major funds. Funds are accounting devices the District uses to keep track of specific sources of
funding and spending on particular programs. Some funds are required by state law and by bond
covenants. The District establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular
purposes (i.e. long-term debt) or to show that it is properly using certain restricted revenues (j.e.
entitlement grants).
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TOWNSHIP OF COLTS NECK SCHOOL DISTRICT
COLTS NECK, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED

Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The District maintains two financial funds:

L

Governmental Funds: The District's activities reported in governmental funds focus on how
money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for
spending in the future years. These funds are reported using an accounting method called
modified accrual accounting that measures cash and all other financial assets that can
readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed
short-term view of the District's general government operations and the basic services it
provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or
fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance educational
programs. The relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the
government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities) and governmental
funds statements is reconciled in the financial statements.

Proprietary Funds: Services for which the District charges a fee are generally reported in
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as the District-wide
financial statements. The District's enterprise funds (one type of proprietary fund) are the
same as its business-type activities but provide more detail and additiona! information, such
as cash flow.
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TOWNSHIP OF COLTS NECK SCHOOL DISTRICT
COLTS NECK, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED

Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole

Table 1 below reflects the District's net position as a whole for the Fiscal years 2021 and 2020.

TABLE 1
NET POSITION

ASSETS
Current & Other Assets
Capital Assets

FY2021

$12,0566,317.98

28,161,571.66

FY2020

$9,486,164.08

27,651,230.59

TOTAL ASSETS 40,217,889.64 37,137,394.65
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESQURCE
Deferred loss from debt refunding 148,898.34 175,026.81
Related to pensions 1,376,800.00 1,936,804.00
TOTAL DEFERRED QUTFLOWS 1,525,698.34 2,111,830.81
LIABILITIES
Long-Term Liabilities 18,440,236.87 18,929,827.652
Other Liabilities 1,653,196.37 770,938.62
TOTAL LIABILITIES 19,993,433.24 19,700,766.14
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to pensions 2,908,148.00 2,892 431.00
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS 2,808,148.00 2,892 431.00
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 17,949,0056.29 17,015,807 .88
Restricted 7,548,669.81 6,293,827.28
Unrestricted (deficit) __(6,656,668.36) __(6,653,606.84)
TOTAL NET POSITION $18,842,006.74 $16,656,028.32

The District's combined net position was $18,842,006.74 on June 30, 2021.
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TOWNSHIP OF COLTS NECK SCHOOL DISTRICT
COLTS NECK, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED

Table 2 shows changes in net assets for fiscal years 2021 and 2020.

TABLE 2
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FYz021 FY2020
Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for Services 148,090.61 692,722.21
Operating Grants & Contributions 5,341,575.41 6,071,169.20

General Revenues
Property Taxes
Grants (includes State Aid)

24,391,226.00

23,481,122.00

& Entitlements 2,655,717.00 2,388,129.00
Other Revenues 217,851.78 373,718.7M1
Special ltems:

Prior Year Accounts Receivable Cancelled (71,269.80)

Expenses.
Instruction 17,876,630.67 18,456,178.56
Pupils and Instructional Staff 5,282,794 .35 5,586,454.98
General & School Administration,

Central Services &

Administrative Technology 2,547,495.25 2,354, 540.57
Maintenance 2,741,864.81 2,510,444.24
Transportation 1,417,020.53 1,385,804.53
interest on Long-Term Debt 516,819.64 468,681.27
Business-Type 420,109.01 770,046.56

Total Expenses 30,802,734.26 31,532,150.71

Change in Assets 1,880,456.74 1,474,711.41

Net Position July 1, (As restated) 16,961,550.00 15,181,316.91

Net Position June 30, 18,842,006.74 16,656,028.32

32,683,191.00

33,006,862.12

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and
grants offsetting those services.

Variances in both the revenues and expenditures are significantly affected by fluctuations in the

actuarial revenuefexpenses for TPAF and PERS Pension under GASB 68 and Postemployment
Benefits under GASB 75.
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TOWNSHIP OF COLTS NECK SCHOOL DISTRICT

COLTS NECK, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED
Sources of Revenue for Fiscal Year 2021

In the District Wide Financial Statements, the District’s total revenue for the 2020-2021 school year
was $32,683,191.00 as reflected in Table 3 below. Property taxes accounted for 76 percent of the
total revenue with the other 25 percent consisting of federal & state aid, charges for service,
operating grants & confributions, and miscellaneous sources. Table 3 below summarizes these

revenues for FY2021 and FY2020.
TABLE 3
DISTRICT-WIDE REVENUES

FY2021 FY2020
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
Property Taxes $24,391,226.00 75.00% 23,481,122.00 71.00%
Federal & State Grants not Restricted 2,655,717.00 8.00% 2,388,129.00 8.00%
Miscellaneous Income 217,851.78 1.00% 373,719.71 1.00%
Special ltems:
Prior Year Accounts Receivable Cancelled (71,269.80)
Charges for Services 148,090.61 692,722.21 2.00%
Operating Grants and Contributions 5,341,575.41 16.00% 6,071,169.20 18.00%
$32,683,191.00 100.00% $33,006,862.12 100.00%

Expenses for the Fiscal Year 2021

The total expenditures for the 2020-2021 fiscal year for all programs and services were

$30,802,734.26. Table 4 below summarizes these program costs.

TABLE 4
DISTRICT-WIDE EXPENSES
FY2021 EY2020
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
Instruction $17,876,630.67 58.00% 18,260,067.93 56.00%
Pupils and Instructional Staff 5,282,794.35 17.00% 6,667,056.49 20.00%
General & School Adm., Central
Services & Adm. Technology 2,647,495.25 8.00% 2,360,281.16 7.00%
Maintenance 2,741,864.81 9.00% 2,615,688.58 8.00%
Transportation 1,417,020.53 5.00% 1,652,912.27 5.00%
Interest on Long-Term Debt 516,819.64 2.00% 462.952.31 1.00%
Business-Type 420,109.01 1.00% 029,637.64 3.00%
$30,802,734.26 100.00% $32,048,496.38 100.00%
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TOWNSHIP OF COLTS NECK SCHOOL DISTRICT
COLTS NECK, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED

The District's expenses are predominantly related to instructing, providing services and
transporting students, grades kindergarten through eight, which accounts for 75 percent of the total
District costs. Administrative and business expenses account for the costs of the Office of the
Superintendent of Schools, the Business Office, and the Principal's Offices in both school
buildings. Maintenance and operations account for the costs of keeping the school buildings and
grounds safe, clean and in good operating condition, and includes all the utility costs related to the
school facilities. Other costs include interest on long-term debt, unallocated depreciation expense
and the costs of the business-type activities of the proprietary funds. It is important to note that
depreciation expense on capital assets is included in expenses for the year under this accounting
reporting model; expenses therefore include 1,220,169.97 for depreciation for Governmental
Activities.

Governmental Activities
Table 5 presents the net cost (total cost less fees generated by the acfivities and

intergovernmental aid provided for specific programs) of District activities. The net cost shows the
financial burden placed on the District's taxpayers and the state by each of these functions.

TABLE S
NET COST OF SERVICES
Total Cost of Total Cost of Net Cost of Net Cost of

Services Services Services Services

FY2021 FY2020 FY2021 FY2020
Instruction $17,876,630.67 $18,456,178.56 $14,265,145.91 $14,094,540.10
Pupils and Instructional Staff 5,282,794.35 5,586,454.98 4,321,645.53 4,381,804.18

General & School Adm., Central

Services & Administrative Tech. 2,547 .495.25 2,354,540.57 2,163,382.89 2,061,971.13
Maintenance 2,741,864.81 2,510,444 24 2,488,546.80 2.441,680.64
Transportation 1,417,020.53 1,385,804.53 1,272,838.81 1,242,267.63
interest on Long-Term Debt 516,819.64 468,581.27 516,819.64 468,581.27
Business-Type 420,109.01 770,046.56 283,688.66 77,324.35
Total Expenses $30,802,734.26 $31,532,150.71 $25,313,068.24 $24,768,259.30
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TOWNSHIP OF COLTS NECK SCHOOL DISTRICT
COLTS NECK, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED
General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The District’s budget is prepared according to New Jersey Statutes and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of modified accrual and encumbrance accounting.

Over the course of the year, the Board of Education approved revisions to the general fund budget
as needed. These budget amendments were necessary for the following reasons:

+ Realign budgeted salary accounts as needed to account for staff transfers to various
programs.

+ Realigned appropriations in accordance with the prescribed chart of accounts as modified
by the comprehensive educational improvement and financing act.

e Transferred from unexpended appropriations to purchase teaching materials and
equipment to meet various program needs.

Capital Assets

During the fiscal year 2020-2021 the District's capital acquisitions exceeded depreciation expense,
therefore capital assets net of depreciation increased by $511,072.07 Table 6 reflects the
comparative balances of capital assets net of depreciation. The detail of the changes in capital
assets is reflected in Note 3 to the financial statements.

Table 6
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) at June 30, 2021
2021 2020
Land $7,114,624.00 $7,114,624.00
Construction in Progress 2,168,789.04 1,310,408.00
Site improvements 465,220.13 524,139.03
Building Improvements 17,420,554.01 17,623,414.02
Machinery and Equipment 987,325.48 1,072,855.54
$28,156,512.66 $27,645,440.59
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TOWNSHIP OF COLTS NECK SCHOOL DISTRICT
COLTS NECK, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED
Debt Administration

At June 30, 2021, the District had $18,440,236.86 of outstanding long-term debt, consisting of
bonds payable, compensated absences, capital leases and Net Pension Liability. The District will
continue to pay down its debt, as the obligations are due. Table 7 reflects the comparison of
outstanding debt for the past two fiscal years. More information of the District’s long-term debt is
presented in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Table 7
Long-Term Debt, June 30

FY2021 FY2020
Capital Leases 1,625,298.70
Compensated Absences 720,795.00 774,150.00
Bonds Payable 8,780,000.00 10,045,000.00
Unamortized Bond Premium 651,181.16 765,449,561
Net Pension Expense Payabie 6,662,962.00 7,345,228.00

$18,440,236.86 $18,929,827.51

Contacting the District’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with a
general overview of the School District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the
money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional information,
contact Mr. Vincent S, Marasco, School Business Administrator/Board Secretary, Colts Neck
Township School District, 70 Conover Road, Colts Neck, New Jersey 07722.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements provide a financial overview of
the Districl's operations. These financial statements present the financial position and
operating results of all funds as of June 30, 2021
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DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the District. These statements include the
financial activities of the overall district, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting
of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-lype activities of the District.
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COLTS NECK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Inventory
Interfund
Restricted assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress
Other capital assets net of depreciation
Total Assets

DEFERRED QUTFLOW OF RESOURCES:
Related to loss from debt refunding
Related to pensions
Totat Deferred Outflows

LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable
Payable to federal government
Payroll Deductions Payable
Unemployment Compensation Claims Payable
Interfund Payable
Unearned revenue
Accrued interest payable
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year:
Bonds and capital leases payable
Due beyond one year:
Pension Liability
Compensated absences payable
Bonds and capital leases payable
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESQURCES:
Related {0 pensicns

NET POSITION:

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Speciat revenue fund

Capital projects fund

Other purposes
Unrestricted (deficit}

Total Net Position

JUNE 30, 2021

EXHIBIT "A-1"

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
$2,579,448.98 $265,606.30 $2,845,054.28
789,160.27 789,160.27
5,167.39 5,167.39
187,326.90 187,326.90
8,229,619.14 8,229,619.14
9,283,413.04 9,283,413.04
18,873,099.62 5,059.00 18,878,158.62
39,842,067.95 275,821.69 40,217,889.64
148,898.34 148,888.34
1,376,800.00 1,376,800.00
1,525,688.34 1,525,698.34
597,345.25 597,345.25
1,282.60 1,282.60
627,557.18 827,557.18
21,487.55 21,487.55
- 187,326.90 187,326.90
14,734.38 44,929.17 59,663.56
58,533.33 58,533.33
1,833,836.47 1,833,836.47
6,662,962.00 6,662,962.00
720,795.00 720,795.00
9,222,643.40 0,222,643.40
19,761,177.17 232,258.07 19,993,433.24
2,908,148.00 2,908,148.00
17,943,046.29 5,059.00 17,949,005.29
15,065.83 15,065.83
3,192,183.98 3,192,183.98
4,320,377.96 4,320,377.96
{6,673,132.94) 38,506.62 (6,634,626.32)
$18,798,441.12 $43,565.62 $18,842,006.74

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MAJOR FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Individual Fund financial statements and schedules present more detailed information for the individual
fund in a format that segregates information by fund type.
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ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash, restricted reserves

Cash with Fiscal Agents

Due from other funds

Cther receivables

Receivables from other governments

Total assels

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

Liabilities:
Accounis payable
Payable to federal goverrment
Payroll Deductions Payable
Unempioyment Compensation Claims Payable
Interfund payables
Uneamed revenue

Total labiities

Fund balances:

Resfricted:
Capilal reserve account
Emergency reserve account
Maintenance reserve account
Impact Ald reserve accotint
Excess Surplus - Designated for
Subsequent Year's Expenditures
Excess surplus
Capital projects fund
Debt service fund
State Unemployment Insurance
Student Activilies

Assigned:
Designated for subsequent years expenditures
Encumbrances

Unassigned

Total fund balances

Totat abiities and fund balances

EXHIBIT "B-1*

SHEET#1
COLTS NEGK TOWNS! ISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
NMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2621
SPECIAL DEBT TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL

FUND FUND FUND EUNDS
2563,572.99 § $ 810,16 § 2,564,383.15
7,534,603.98 15,085.83 7,540,660.81
605,015.16 605,015.16
230,860.18 230,860.18
1,495.21 1,495.21
720,610.00 58,055.06 787,665.06

#

11,753,662.31 § 74,616.10 § 810,16 § 11,829,088.57
119,932.25 § $ $ 119,932.25
1,282.60 1,282.60
627,557.18 627,557.18
21,487.55 21,487.55
43,533.28 43,533.28
£95.015.16 14,734.39 709,749.55
1,463,802.14 58,550.27 1,523,542 41
3,192,183.98 3,102,183.98
93,000.00 93,000.00
£690,885.00 690,885.00
2,971,394.92 2,071,394.92
299,862.56 299,892.56
113.00 H3.00
287,247.52 267,247.52
15,065.83 15,065.83
584,504.44 697.16 585,201.60
62,965.69 62,965.69
2,107,596.06 2,107,596.66
10,280,670.17 15,065.83 810.18 10,305,546.16
11,753,662.31 $ 74,616.10 3 810,18 _$ 11,829,088.57

The accompanying Noles 1o the Financiat Staternents are an inlegral part of this statemend,
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EXHIBIT "B-1"
SHEET #2

TOWNSHIP OF COLTS NECK SCHOOL DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Total Fund Balances (Brought Forward)

Amounts Reporied for Governmental Activities in the Statement
of Net Assets (A-1) are different because:

Capital assels used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Cost of Assels
Accumutated Depreciation

Long term liabilities, including bonds payable, and other related
amotinis that are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.

Net Pension Liability

Compensated Absences

Bonds Payable

Unamortized of Refunding Bond Premium

Deferred Quiflows and Inflows of resources are applicable
to future periods and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Pensions:
Deferred Cutflows
Pension related
Employer Contribution related to pensions

Deferred Inflows:
Pension related

Refunding Bonds:
Deferred Outflow:
Loss on Refunding Bonds

Cerlain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.
Accounts Payabie - Pension Related
Accrued Interest Payable

Net Position of Governmenial Activities

JUNE 30, 2021

$10,305,546.16

$65,339,051.18
{27,182,638.52)
28,156,512.66

(6,662,962.00)
(720,795.00)
($8.780,000.00)
(651,181.17)
(9,431,181.17)
(17,745,221.71)
899,387.00
477.413.00
1,376,800.00
(2,908,148.00)
148,898.34
(477,413.00)
(58,533.33)
__ (535,946.33)

$18,798,441.12

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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REVENUES:
l.ocal sources;
Local tax levy

Other Restricted Misceilaneous Revenues

Miscellaneous
Interest on capital reserve

Total - local sources

State sources
Federal sources

Total revenues

EXPENDGITURES:

Current expense:
Regular instruction
Special instruction
Other Instruction

Support services:
Student and instruction related services
General administrative services
Schoot administrative services
Central services
Administrative information techrology
Plant operations and maintenance
Pupit transportation

Debt service;
Principat

Interest
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources {uses):
Accounis receivable cancelled
Transfers 1o other funds

Capital Reserve - transfer {o capital projecis

Capital leases (non-budgeted)
Total other financing sources (uses)
Ned change in fund batances
Fund bafances, July 1, 2020 (as restated)

Fund bajances, June 30, 2021

LTS NECK TOWNSH H
ENDITURES AND CHA

TATEMENT OF REVENUES

L DISTRICT

N FUND BALANCE

EXHIBIT "B-2"

GOVERNME FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
SPECIAL CAPITAL DEBT TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECTS SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS
$ 22,719,155.00 § 5 ] 1,672,071.00 $ 24,391,226.00
8,074.71 8,074.7%
212,014.08 87,231.28 17.71 209,263.03
570.49 570.49
22,939,814.26 87,231.26 1,672,088.71 24,699,134.23
6.914,552.00 6,914,552.09
§73,844.00 442 672.05 1,116,516.06
30,528,210.35 520.903.32 1,672,088.71 32,730,202.38
10,725,067.48 10,725,067 48
5,295,296.58 434,248.25 5,729,544.83
987,340.53 987,340.53
5,354,198.19 98,110.11 5,452,308.30
601,256.28 601,256,28
1,085,660.50 1,085,660.50
456,220.39 456,220.39
232,746.99 232,746.99
2,438,652.72 2,438,652.72
117847562 1,178,475.62
409,005.30 1,265,000.00 1.574,005.30
8,618,82 407,750.00 416,668.82
1,915,171.41 8,828.00 1,923,999.41
30,688,010.81 541,186.36 1,672,750.00 32,901,947.17
{159,800.46) (11,263.04) (661.29) (171,744.79)
(71,269.80) (71.269.80)
{224,366.90) {224,366.90)
{45.,280.00) 45,280,00
1,339,288.84 1,339,288.84
1,069,641.94 (25,889.80) 1,043 ,652.14
909,841.48 {11,283.04) (25,989.80) {661.29) 874,907.35
9,379,828.69 § 26,348.87 25 989.80 % 147145 9,433 ,638.81
$ 10,289,670.17 & 15,065.83 $-0- $ 81016 % 10,305,546.16

The accompanying Notes 1o the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COLTS NECK TOWN DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF T EMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
N FUND BALANCES OF GOVE| TAL FUND
TO THE STATEME TIE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (from B-2)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmenta! funds as expenditures. However, in the
statement of aclivities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated usefu!
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capitaf outiays exceeded
depreciation in the pesiod

Depreciation expense
Capital outlays $1,923,998 41
Less: Capital Dutlays not capitalized {192,757.37)

Proceeds from debt issues are a financing Source in governmentat funds. They are
not revenue in the statement of activities; issuing debt increases fong-term liabilities
in the statement of net position.

Payment of Bond Principal
Armortization of Bond Premium

Capital lease proceeds - Current Year

Repayment of long-term debt is an expenditure in the govemmental funds, bui the repayment reduces
long-term Habilities in the statement of net position and is not reported in the statement of aclivities.

Payment of capital iease payable

In the statement of aclivities, interest on long-term debt is accrued, regardiess of when dus.
In governmental funds, interest is reported when due, The accrued interest is an addition in the
reconciliation.

In the statement of activities, deferred amounts on refundings are amortized as a component
of interest over the shorter of the ife of the old or new debt.

District pension contributions are reporied as expenditures in the governmental funds when made.
However, they are reported as deferred outflows of resources in the Statement of Net Position because
the reporied nel pension Hability is measured a year before the District's report date. Pension expense,
which is the change in the net pension fiability adjusted for changes in deferved outflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions, is reported in the Statement of Activities,

District pension contributions 446,972.00
Less: Pension expense (370,868.00}

in the staternent of activities, cerlain expenses, ¢.9., compensated absences (vacations) are
measured by the amounts earned during the year. In governmental funds, however, expenditures
for these ftlems are reported in the amount of financial resources used (paid). When the eamed
amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference is a reduction in the reconciliation (-}, when the
paid amount exceeds the eamed amount the difference is an addition to the reconciliation (+).

Change in net position of governmental activities (A-2)

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT "B-3"

$871,907.35

{1,220,169.97)

1,731,242.04

1,265,000.00
114,26B8.35

(1,339,286.84;

409,005.30

4,466.67

(28,128.47)

76,104.00

53,355.00

$1,939,761.43



OTHER FUNDS
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ASSETS:

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Inventories

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Furniture, machinery and equipment

Less accumulaied depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Interfunds payabie
Unearned revenue
Total current liabilities
Total labilities
NET POSITION:
Net invesiment in capital assets

Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net position

COLTS NECK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2021

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

EXHIBIT "B-4"

FOOD PRESCHOOL
SERVICE TUITION PROGRAM
FUND FUND TOTALS
$ 41,238.40 $ 224,366.90 265,605.30
5,157.39 - 5,157.39
46,395.79 224,366.90 270,762.69
241,305.00 241,305.00
{236,246.00) {236,246.00)
5,069.00 - 5,059.00
51,454.79 224,366.90 275,821.69
- 187,326.80 187,326.90
7,888.17 37,040.00 44,929.17
7,888.17 224,366.90 232,256.07
7,888.17 224,366.80 232,256.07
5,050.00 - 5,059.00
38,506.62 - 38,506.62
$ 43,565.62 $ - 43,565.62

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COLTS NECK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL BISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
EOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services:
Tuition - individuals
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales
Salaries
Employee benefits
Supplies and materials
Management Fees
Miscelianeous
Depreciation

Total operafing expenses

Operating income (loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Interest
Total non-operating revenues (expenses)
Income before contributions and transfers

Other financing sources
Transfers in

Totat other financing sources
Change in net position (loss)
Total net position - beginning

Total net position - ending

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Stalements are an integral part of this statement.

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

EXHIBIT "B-5"

FOOD PRESCHOOL
SERVICE TUITION PROGRAM
FUND FUND TJOTAL

$ 130,920.35 130,920.35

5,500.00 5,500.00

136,420.35 136,420.35

$ 3,442.59 3,442.59

289,611.26 289,611.26

96,537.09 96,537.09

5,632.10 5,632.10

20,100.00 20,100.00

4,054.97 4,054.97

731.00 731.00

28,328.56 391,780.45 420,109.01
(28,328.56) (255,360.10) (283,688.66)

17.07 17.07

17.07 17.07
{28,311.49) (255,360.10) (283,671.59)
224,366.90 224,366.90

224,366.90 224,366.90
(28,311.49) (30,993.20) {59,304.69)

71,877.11 30,993.20 102,870.31

$ 43,5665.62 3 0.00 43,565.62
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COLTS NECK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

EXHIBIT "B-6 "

FOOD PRESCHOOL
SERVICE TUITION PROGRAM
FUND EFUND JOTAL
Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from customers ($189.75) $145,944.35 $145,754.60
Payments to employees (289,611.26) (289,611.26)
Payments to employee benefits (96,537.09) (96,537.09)
Payments to suppliers {34,100.05} (5,632.10) (39,732.15)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities (34,289.80) {245,836.10) {280,125.90)
Cash flows from nencapital financing activities:

Operating subsidies and transfers to other funds 411,693.80 411,693.80
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 411,693.80 411,693.80
Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest and dividends 17.07 17.07
Net cash provided by investing activities 17.07 17.07
Net increase/{deficif) in cash and cash equivaients (34,272.73) 165,857.70 131,584.97
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2020 75,611.13 58,509.20 134,020.33
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2021 41,238.40 224,365.90 265,605.30
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash

provided (used) by operating activities

Operaling income (loss) (28,328.56) {255,360.10) (283,688.66)
Adjustments to reconciling operating income {loss) to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation 731.00 731.00
Change in assets and liabilities:
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue {189.75) 8,883.00 8,803.25
Increase in accounts payable {9,845.08) (9,945.08)
Decrease in invenfories 3,442.59 3,442.59
{5,961.24) 9,524.00 3,662.76
Net cash provided by {used for) operating activities {$34,289.80) {$245,836.10) ($280,125.90)

The accompanying Notes lo the Financial Statements are an integral pari of this statement.
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NOTE 1:

Colts Neck Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Township of Colts Neck School District (the
“District”} have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accouOnting and financial
reporting principles. The more significant of the District’'s accounting policies are
described below:

Reporting Entity

The Township of Colis Neck School District is a Type Il District located in
Monmouth County, New Jersey. The School District is an instrumentality of the
State of New Jersey, established to function as an educational institution. The
Board of Education of the Colts Neck School District, comprised of nine elected
individuals, is the primary governing authority of the District. A superintendent is
appointed by the Board and is responsible for the administrative control of the
District.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity,
are set forth in Statement No. 39 of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board entited “Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component
Units" (GASB 39), as codified in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards.

Organizations that are legally separate, tax-exempt entities and meet all of the
following criteria should be discretely presented as component units. These
criteria are:

1. The economic resources received or held by the separate organization are
entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government.

2. The primary government, or its component unit, is entitled to, or has the ability
to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources of the organization.

3. The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the

specific primary government, or its component units, is entitle to, or has the
ability to otherwise access, are significant to that primary government.
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NOTE 1:

Colts Neck Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Reporting Entity (Continued)

The combined financial statements include all funds of the District over which
the Board exercises operating confrol. The operations of the District include A
primary school, elementary school and middle school for Grades K thru 8,
located in the Township of Colts Neck. The Township is part of the Freehoid
Regional High School District for Grades 9 thru 12. There were no additional
entities required to be included in the reporting entity under the criteria as
described above, in the current fiscal year. Furthermore, the District is not
includable in any other reporting entity on the basis of such criteria.

Basis of Presentation

The District’s basic financial statements consist of District-wide statements,
including a statement of Net position and a statement of activities, and fund
financial statements which provide a more detailed level of financial information.

District-Wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of
activities display information about the District as a whole. These statements
include the financial activities of the overall District. Eliminations have been
made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. These statements
distinguish generally between the governmental and business-type activities of
the District. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-
type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the
governmental and business-type activities of the District at fiscal year end. The
statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for the business-type activity of the District and for each
function of the District’'s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that
are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) fees and
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and
(b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirement of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. The
comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to
which each governmental function or business segment is self-financing or draws
from the general revenues of the District.
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NOTE 1:

Colts Neck Township School District
Notes fo the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Presentation

Fund Financial Statements. During the fiscal year, the District segregates
transactions related to certain District functions or activities in separate funds in
order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. The
fund financial statements provide information about the District’s funds. Separate
statements are presented for each fund category- governmental and
proprietary. The New Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE) has elected to
require New Jersey districts to treat each governmental fund as a major fund in
accordance with the option noted in GASB No. 34, paragraph 76. The NJDOE
as the oversight entity believes that the presentation of all funds as major is
important for the public interest and to promote consistency among District
financial reporting models.

Governmental Fund Types

General Fund The general fund is the general operating fund of the District and
is used to account for all expendable financial resources except those required to
be accounted for in another fund. Inciuded are certain expenditures for vehicles
and movable instructional or non instructional equipment which are classified in
the capital outlay sub-fund.

As required by the New Jersey Statement Department of Education, the District
includes budgeted capital outlay in this fund. U.S. Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles as they pertain to governmental entities state that general
fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived
improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived exclusively
from unrestricted revenues. Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are
normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid, district taxes, and appropriated
fund balance. Expenditures are those that result in the acquisition of or additions
to capital assets for land, existing buiidings, improvements of grounds,
construction of buildings, additions to or remodeling of buildings and the
purchase of built-in equipment. These resources can be transferred from and fo
the current expense by Board resolution; in certain instances approval by the
County Superintendent of Schools may also be required.

Special Revenue Fund The special revenue fund is used to account for the
proceeds of specific revenue sources from State and Federal Government (other
than those for major capital projects, debt service or proprietary funds) and local
appropriations that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.
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NOTE 1:

Colts Neck Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Governmental Fund Types

Capital Projects Funds The capital projects fund is used to account for all
financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds). The financial
resources are derived from temporary notes or serial bonds that are specifically
authorized by the voters as a separate question on the ballot either during the
annual election or at a special election.

Debt Service Fund The debt service fund is used to account for the
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of principal and interest on debt
issued to finance major property acquisition, construction and improvement
programs.

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Fund The enterprise fund accounts for all revenues and expenses
pertaining to the Districts Food Service and Preschool Tuition programs
operations. These funds are utilized to account for operations that are financed
and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises. The stated
intent is that the cost (i.e. expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of
providing goods or services to the students on a continuing basis are financed or
recovered primarily through user charges.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

Beginning with the year ended June 30, 2021, the District has implemented
GASB Statement 84, Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this new Statement is
to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for
accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be
reported. This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of
all state and local governments. The focus of the criteria generally is on (1)
whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the
beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are
included to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit
arrangements that are fiduciary activities.

An activity meeting the criteria should be reported in a fiduciary fund in the basic
financial statements. Governments with activities meeting the criteria should
present a statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in
fiduciary net position. An exception to that requirement is provided for a
business-type activity that normally expects to hoid custodial assets for three
months or less,
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NOTE 1:

Colts Neck Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)

As a result of the implementation of this Statement, the New Jersey Department
of Education has made the following determinations as to the reporting of certain
funds which, in prior years, have been reported as Fiduciary Activities:

Prior to After
implementation of Implementation of
Activity GASB 84 GASB 84
Student Activity Funds Fiduciary Fund Spec:zla:iufizvenue
Payroli Agency Funds Fiduciary Fund General Fund
?Lar:: Unemployment Compensation Fiduciary Fund General Fund

Basis of Accounting-Measurement Focus

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial
records and reported in the financial statements.

District-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements: The District-wide
financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Differences in
the accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of
revenue, the recording of unearned revenue, and in the presentation for
expenses versus expenditures. Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to
accrual as under New Jersey State Statute a municipality is required to remit to
its school district the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted upon or
ceriified, prior to the end of the school year. The District records the entire
approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the
revenue is both measurable and available.

The District is entitled to receive monies under the established payment schedule
and the unpaid amount is considered to be an “accounts receivable”. Revenue
from grants, entitlements, and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Governmental Fund
Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and
available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transactions can be
determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures
are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and
interest on long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences,
which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured.
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NOTE 1:

Colts Neck Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Accounting-Measurement Focus {Continued)

General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental
funds. Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under
capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the
general, special revenue, and debt service funds. In accordance with P.L. 2011,
¢. 202, which became effective January 17, 2012, the District elected to move the
April school Board election to the date of the November general election thereby
eliminating the vote on the annual base budget. Budgets are prepared using the
modified accrual basis of accounting. The legal level of budgetary control is
established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are
defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the
minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.JA.C. 6A:23-2.2(f)1. Expenditures
may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the line item level. All budget
amendments and transfers must be approved by School Board resolution.
Budget amendments during the year ended June 30, 2021 totaled $389,488.05.

All budget amounts presented in the accompanying supplementary information
reflect the original budget and the amended budget (which have been adjusted
for legally authorized revisions of the annual budgets during the year).

Appropriations, except remaining project appropriations, encumbrances, and
unexpended grant appropriations, lapse at the end of each fiscal year. The
capital projects fund presents the remaining project appropriations compared to
current year expenditures. Formal budgetary integration into the accounting
system is employed as a management control device during the fiscal year. For
governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the budgetary
basis of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) with
the exception of the legally mandated (NJSA 18A:22-44.2) revenue recognition of
one or more deferred State Aid payments for budgetary purposes only due to the
State deferral of such payments into the subsequent budget year and the
accounting treatment of encumbrances in the special revenue fund as described
below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal
budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered
appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant
accounting budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognized encumbrances as
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis
does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the
presentation of GAAP basis financial records.
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NOTE 1:

Colts Neck Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Encumbrance Accounting

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditures of resources are recorded to reserve a portion
of the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental funds
other than the special revenue fund are reported as assigned fund balances at
fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather
commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the District has
received advances are reflected in the balance sheet as unearned revenues at
fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An
entry will be made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the
appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance
amount as of the current fiscal year end.

interfunds

Interfund receivables and payables arise from transactions between particular
funds and are considered short term in duration. The interfund transactions are
recorded by all funds affected in the period in which the transactions are
executed and are part of the district's available spendable resources.

Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

Inventories of materials and supplies held for consumption in the governmental
funds are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase and year end
balances are not reported in the financial statements.

inventories of food and/or supplies in the food service fund are recorded at cost
on a first-in, first-out basis or, in the case of Food Distribution Commodities, at
stated value which approximates market,

Prepaid expenses which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the
enterprise fund, are recorded as expenditures in the year of purchase.
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NOTE 1:

Colts Neck Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets

The District has an established formal system of accounting for its capital assets.
Capital Assets used for governmental purposes, which include land, buildings
and improvements and furniture and equipment, are only reported in the district-
wide financial statements. The District generally defines capital assets as assets
with an initial cost of $2,000.00 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of
one year. Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost.
Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date
received. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the
value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated in the district-wide statements using the straight-
line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated
Asset Class Useful Lives
School Buildings 50
Building Improvements 20
Electrical/Plumbing 30
Vehicles 8
Office and Computer Equipment 10
instructional Equipment 10
Grounds Equipment 15
Buses 12

Compensated Absences

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick
leave) as directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 16 (GASB 18), “Accounting for Compensated Absences.” A liability for
compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and
employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Compensated Absences (Continued)

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in
accordance with the District's personnel policy andfor collective bargaining unit
contracts. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation. Sick
leave benefits provide for ordinary sick pay and begin vesting with the employee
after four years of service.

The liability for compensated absences was accrued using the termination
payment method, whereby the liability is calculated based on the amount of sick
leave and vacation days that are expecied to become eligible for payment upon
termination. The District estimates its accrued compensated absences liability
based on the accumulated sick and vacation days at the balance sheet date by
those employees who are currently eligible to receive termination payments.

For the district-wide statements, the current portion is the amount estimated to be
used in the following year. For the governmental funds in the fund financial
statements, a liability is reported only for to the extent of the amount actually due
at year end as a result of employee resignations/retirements. Compensated
absences are a reconciling item between the fund level and district-wide
presentations.

Fund Eguity

Fund balance restrictions are used to indicate that portion of the fund balance
that is not available for expenditures or is legally segregated for a specific future
use. Designation of portions of the fund balances are established to indicate
tentative plans for financial utilization in a future period. The unassigned fund
balances represent the amount available for future budgetary operations.

Unassigned net position represents the remains of the District's equity in the
cumulative earnings of the proprietary fund.

Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenue in the special revenue and proprietary funds represents funds
which have been received but not yet earned. A corresponding accounts

receivable has also been established for any open encumbrances at year end
which is an allowable practice under generally accepted accounting principles.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)}

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported on the
district-wide financial statements. In general, governmental fund payables and
accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full from
current financia!l resources are reported as obligations of the funds. However,
contractually required pension contributions and compensated absences that are
paid from governmental funds are reported as liabilities on the fund financial
statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current
year, Long term debt is recognized as a liability on the fund financial statemenis
when due.

Net Position

Net Position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net
investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any borrowing used for the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net position is
reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either
through the enabling legislation adopted by the District or through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other
governments, The District’s policy is to first apply restricted resources when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net
positions are available.

Fund Balance — Governmental Funds

GASB Statement 54, “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions” modifies fund balance reporting and clarifies fund type definitions.
This Statement aims to enhance the usefuiness of fund balance information by
providing clearer fund balance clarifications that can be applied more
consistently.

Under the standard, in the fund financial statements, governmental funds report
the following classifications of fund balance:

Nonspendable - includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
not spendable in form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact.

Restricted ~ includes amounts restricted by external sources (creditors, laws of
other governments, etc.) or by constitutional provision or enabling legislation. The
District reports the Capital Reserve, Emergency Reserve, Maintenance Reserve,
Impact Aid Reserve, Excess Surplus, Student Activities and State Unemployment
Insurance as Restricted Fund Balance.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fund Balance Reserves (Continued)

Committed — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes.
Committed fund balance is reported pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board
of Education, the District's highest level of decision making authority.
Commitments may be meodified or rescinded only through resolutions approved
by the Board of Education.

Assigned — includes amounts that the District intends to use for a specific
purpose, but do not meet the definition of restricted or committed fund balance.
Under the District's policy, amounts may be assigned by the Business
Administrator. The District reports Year End Encumbrances as Assigned Fund
Balance.

Unassigned — is the residual classification for the general fund: This classification
represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has
not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the
general fund. The general fund should be the only fund that reports a positive
unassigned fund balance amount. In other governmental funds, if expenditures
incurred for specific purposes exceeded the amounts restricted, committed, or
assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned
fund balance.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted fund balance is available, the District considers resfricted funds to
have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed,
assigned, or unassigned fund balance are available, the District considers
amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds,
and finally unassigned funds, as needed.

Revenues Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange fransactions, in which each party gives and
receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the
exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the
fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available.
Available means the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or
are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter {o be used to pay liabilities
of the current fiscal year. For the District, “available” means within sixty days of
the fiscal year end.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenues Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions {Continued)

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly
giving equal value in return, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and
donations. On the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in
the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the period in which the income is earned. Revenue from grants,
entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied.

Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when
the resources are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first
permitted; matching requirements, in which the District must provide local
resources to be used for a specific purpose; and expenditure requirements, in
which the resources are provided to the District on a reimbursement basis. On
the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must also
be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered
both measurable and available at fiscal year end: property taxes available as an
advance, interest, and tuition.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the
primary activity of the enterprise fund. For the District, these revenues are sales
in the Enterprise Funds. Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to
provide the service that is the primary activity of the enterprise fund.

Allocation of Indirect Expenses

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities.
Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect
expenses are allocated to functions but are reported separately in the Statement
of Activities. Employee benefits, including the employer's share of social
security, workers compensation, and medical and dental benefits, were allocated
based on salaries of the program. Depreciation expense, where practicable, is
specifically identified by function and is included in the indirect expense column
of the Statement of Activities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Extraordinary and Special ltems

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and
infrequent of occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within
control of management and are either unusual in nature or infrequent in
occurrence. Neither of these types of transactions occurred during the fiscal
year.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions

In the district-wide financial statements for purposes of measuring the net
pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the District's proportionate share of the New Jersey Public Empioyees
Retirement System ("PERS") and the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund
("TPAF") and the additions to/deductions from these retirement systems' fiduciary
net position have been determined on the same basis as they were reported by
PERS and TPAF. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value,

In the governmental fund financial statements the year end pension liability is not
required to be reflected, Pension related revenues and expenditures are reflected
based on amounts that are normally expected to be liquidated with available
financial resources for required pension contributions. Expenditures for PERS
are recognized based upon billings made by the State of New Jersey due April 1s
of each fiscal year. TPAF contributions are paid on the District's behalf by the
State of New Jersey. The governmental fund financial statements reflect both
revenue and expense for this pension contribution.
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NOTE 2:
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred Outflows/inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Currently, the District has
only two items that qualify for reporting in this category, deferred amounts from
refunding debt and deferred amounts related to pensions.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has one item that
qualifies in this category, deferred amounts related to pensions.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The Board considers petty cash, change funds, cash in banks, and short term
investments with original maturities of three months or less as cash and cash
equivalents. Investments are stated at cost, which approximates market.

Deposits

New Jersey statutes permit the deposit of public funds in public depositories
which are located in New Jersey and which meet the requirements of the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA requires a bank
that accepts public funds to be a public depository. A public depository is defined
as a state bank, a national bank, or a savings bank, which is located in the State
of New Jersey, the deposits of which are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation. The statutes also require public depositories to maintain
collateral for deposits of public funds that exceed certain insurance limits.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits {Continued)

Each depository participating in the GUDPA system must pledge collateral equal
to 5% of the average amount of its public deposits and 100% of the average
amount of its public funds in excess of 75% of its capital funds. No collateral is
required for amounts covered by FDIC insurance. The coliateral which may be
pledged to support these deposits includes obligations of the State and federal
governmenis, insured securiies and other collateral approved by the
Department. When the capital position of the depository deteriorates or the
depository takes an unusually large amount of public deposits, the Department of
Banking and Insurance requires additional collateral to be pledged. Under
(GUDPA), if a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the
coliateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount of the
deposits to the governmental unit.

The Township of Colts Neck School District had the following cash and cash
equivalents at June 30, 2021:

Cash in
Fund Type Bank
Governmental $ 11,376,840.25
Proprietary 42 846.70
Total Cash on Deposit 11,4198,586.95
Less: Reconciling ifems {344,913.53)
Total Book Balance 06/30/21 $ 11,074,673.42

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event
of a bank failure, the deposits may not be returned. The District does not have a
specific deposit policy for custodial credit risk other than those policies that
adhere to the requirements of statute. As of June 30, 2021, based upon the
coverage provided by FDIC and NJGUDPA, no amount of the bank balance was
exposed to custodial credit risk. Of the cash on balance in the bank of
$11,419,586.95, $250,000.00 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance and
$10,474,571.19 was covered under the provisions of NJGUDPA, $695,015.16 is
cash held by fiscal agents and is therefor not cover by NJGUDPA,
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Investments

The types of investments which may be purchased by the District are strictly
limited by the express authority of the N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37 Education,

Administration of School Districts. Permitted investments include any of the
following type of securities:

1.

Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations
guaranteed by the United States of America;

Government money market mutual funds which are purchased from an
investment company or investment trust which is registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission under the "Investment Company
Act of 1940, 15 U.S.C. 80a1 et seq., and operated in accordance with 17
C.F.R. § 270.2a7 and which portfolio is limited to U.S. Government
securities that meet the definition of an eligible security pursuant to 17
C.F.R. § 270.2a7 and repurchase agreements that are collateralized by
such U.S. Government securities in which direct investment may be made
pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37. These funds
are also required to be rated by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization;

Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has
issued in accordance with an act of Congress, which security has a
maturity date not greater than 397 days from the date of purchase,
provided that such obligation bears a fixed rate of interest not dependent
on any index or other external factor;

Bonds or other obligations of the Local Unit or bonds or other obligations
of school districts of which the Local Unit is a part or within which the
school district is located;

Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date not more than 397
days from date of purchase, approved by the Division of investment of the
Department of Treasury for investment by School Districts;

Local government investment poois that are fully invested in U.S.
Government securities that meet the definition of eligible security
pursuant to 17 C.F.R. § 270a7 and repurchase agreements that are
collateralized by such U.S. Government securities in which direct
investment may be made pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of N.J.S.A.
18A:2037. This type of investment is also required to be rated in the
highest category by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization,
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Investments {(Continued)

7.

Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund
established pursuant to section 1 of P.L. 1977, ¢.281 C. 52:18A-90.4); or

Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities if.

a.

the underlying securities are permitted investments pursuant to
paragraphs (1) and (3) of this subsection;

the custody of collateral is transferred to a third party;
the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days;

the underlying securities are purchased through a public depository
as defined in section 1 of P.L. 1970, ¢.236 C. 17:1941); and

a master repurchase agreement providing for the cusfody and
security of collateral is executed.

At June 30, 2021, the District had no outstanding investments.

Based upon the limitation set forth by New Jersey Statutes 18A:20-37
and its existing investment practices, the District is generally not exposed
to credit risks, custodial credit risks, concentration of credit risks and
interest rate risks for its investments, nor is it exposed to foreign currency
risks for its deposits and investments.
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NOTE 3:

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress

Total Capital Assets not
being depreciated

Site improvemenis
Buildings & Building Improvements
Machinery & Equipment

Totals at historical cost

Gross Assets (Memo only}

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Site improvements

Buildings & Building Improvements
Machinery & Equipment

Total Depreciation

Totai capital assets being
depreciated, net of depreciation

Total Governmental Activities, net

Business-Type Activities:
Machinery & Equipment
Totals at histerical cost

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Machinery & Equipment

Total Depreciation

Total Business-Type Aclivities, net

CAPITAL ASSETS

Beginning Deletions Ending

Balance Additions and Transfers Balance
$7.114,624.00 $7.114,624.00
1,310,408.00 $1,135,841.04 {$277,560.00) 2,168,780.04
8,425,032.00 1,135,941.04 (277,560.00) 9,283,413.04
1,200,313.00 1,200,313.00
39,895,268.01 446,750.00 277,560.00 40,619,578.01
4,087,196.13 148,551.00 4,235,747.13
45 182,777.14 595,301.00 277,560.00 46,055,638.14
53,607,809.14 1,731,242.04 55,339,051.18
{676,173.97) {58,918.90) (735,092.87)
(22,271,853.99) {926,210.34) (959.67) (23,199,024.00)
{3,014,340.59) (235,040.73) 958.67 (3,248,421.65)
(25,962 368.55) (1,220,169.97) (27,182,5638.52)
19,220,408.59 {624,868.97) 277,560.00 18,873,098.62
27,645 440.59 511,072.07 28,156,512.66
$241,305.00 $241,305.00
241,305.00 241,305.00
{235 515.00} (731.00) {236,246.00)
{235,515.00) (731.00) {236,246.00)
$5,790.00 ($731.00) $5,059.00
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NOTE 3: CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to functional expenses areas of the District

as follows:
Instruction:;
Regular ($972,120.33)
Support services:
Student & instruction related services (2,915.10)
Schoot administrative services (50,210.51)
Piant operations and maintenance (78,636.30)
Pupil transportation (116,287.73)
($1,220,169.87)
NOTE 4: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Bonds are issued by the District pursuant to the provisions of Title 18A,
Education, of the New Jersey Statutes and are required to be approved by the
voters of the municipality through referendum. The proceeds of bonds are
recorded in the Capital Projects Fund and are restricted to the use for which
they were approved in the bond referendum. All bonds are retired in annual
installments within the statutory period of usefulness

School Bonds issued by the District are entitled to and benefit from the provision
of the New Jersey School Board Reserve Act P.L.. 1980 ¢.72. Basically, funds
are held by the State of New Jersey within its State Fund for the Support of Free
Public Schools as a school bond reserve pledged by law to secure payment of
principal and interest due on such bonds in the event of the inability of the issuer
to make payments.
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NOTE 4:

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The following is a summary of transactions that affect long-term liabilities for the

year ended June 30 2021:

Governmental Activities:

Balance Balance Amounts due

June 30, June 30, Within

2020 Additions Reduclions 2021 one year
Bonds Payable $10,045,000.00 $1,265,000.00 $8,780,000.00 $1,320,000.00
Unamortized Bond
Premium 765,449.52 114,268.35 651,181.17 114,367.28
Compensated Absences 774,150.00 53,355.00 720,795.00
Capital Leases Payable 2,034,304.00 409,005.30 1,625,298.70 399,469.19
Net Pension Liability 7,345,228.00 682,266.00 6,662,962.00
$18,029,827.52 $2,034,304.00 $2,523,894 .65 $18,440,236.87 $1,833,836.47

Debt Service Requirements:

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of June 30, 2021,

including interest payments on issued debt, are as follows:

Fiscal Year
June 30 Principal interest Total
Fy2022 1,320,000.00 351,200.00 1,671,200.00
FY2023 1,375,000.00 298,400.00 1,673,400.00
FY2024 1,430,000.00 243,400.00 1,673,400.00
FY2025 1,490,000.00 186,200.00 1,676,200.00
FY2026 1,550,000.00 126,600.00 1,676,600.00
FY2027 1,615,000.00 64,600.00 1,679,600.00
$8,780,000.00 $1,270,400.00 $10,050,400.00
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NOTE 4: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

General obligation school and refunding bonds payable with their outstanding
balances are comprised of the following individual issues:

Amount Bonds
Outstanding Authorized But
issue June 30, 2021 Not issued
$8,715,000.00 in Refunding School Bends dated
April 30, 2015 due in remaining annual instaliments
ranging between $1,320,000.00 and $1,615,000.00
beginning February 1, 2022 and ending February 1,
2027 with interest of 4.00%. 8,780,000.00 -0-
$8,780,000.00 -0-

Bonds Authorized But Not Issued

As of June 30, 2021, the District had no Bonds Authorized but not issued.
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PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans - All required employees of the District are covered by either
the Public Employees’ Retirement System or the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity
Fund which have been established by state statute and are administered by the
New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (Division). According to the State
of New Jersey Administrafive Code, all obligations of both Systems will be
assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The
Division issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial
statements and required supplementary information for the Public Employees
Retirement System and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports
may be obtained by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box
295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625.

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) - The Teachers’ Pension and
Annuity Fund was established as of January 1, 1955, under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide retirement benefits, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan with a special funding
situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the
State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system’s other related non-
contributing employers. Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers
or members of the professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners,
and employees of the Department of Education who have titles that are
unclassified, professional and certified.

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) - The Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS) was established as of January 1, 1955 under the
provision of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide retirement, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Public Employees’ Retirement
System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership is mandatory for
substantially ali full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the employee is not
required to be a member of another state-administered retirement system or
other state or local jurisdiction.

Defined Confribution Retirement Program (DCRP} - The Defined Contribution

Retirement Program (DCRP) was established under the provision of Chapter 92,
P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007 to provide coverage to elected and certain
appointed officials, effective July 1, 2007. Membership is mandatory for such
individuals with vesting occurring after one year of membership.
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Significant Legislation

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, c. 78 enacted certain changes in the
operations and benefit provisions of the TPAF and the PERS systems.

Pension Plan Design Changes

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, ¢. 78, new members of TPAF and PERS,
hired on or after June 28, 2011, will need 30 years of creditable service and have
attained the age of 65 for receipt of the early retirement benefit without a
reduction of 1/4 of 1% for each month that the member is under age 65. New
members will be eligible for a service retirement benefit at age 65.

Funding Changes

Under the new legislation, the methodology for calculating the unfunded accrued
liability payment portion of the employer's annual pension contribution to the
PERS, and TPAF. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) will be
amortized for each plan over an open-ended 30 year period and paid in level
dollars. Beginning with the July 1, 2019 actuarial valuation {(July 1, 2018 for
PFRS), the UAAL will be amortized over a closed 30 year period until the
remaining period reaches 20, when the amortization period will revert to an open-
ended 20-year period.

COLA Suspension

The payment of automatic cost-of-living adjustment to current and future retirees
and beneficiaries are suspended until reactivated as permitted by this law.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions

The vesting and benefit provisions of PERS are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and
43.3B, and N.J.S.A. 18A:6C for TPAF. All benefits vest afler ten years of
service, except for post-retirement healthcare benefits that vest after 25 years of
service.

Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three
years of service credit, become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the
contributions. In the case of death before retirement, members’ beneficiaries are
entitied to full inferest credited to the members’ accounts.

Contribution Requirements - The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A
and N.JSA. 18166, and requires contributions by active members and
contributing employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be
amended by State of New Jersey legislation.
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

The contribution policy is set by New Jersey State Statutes and contributions are
required by active members and contributing employers. Plan members and
employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation. As
of July 1, 2018, PERS and TPAF provide for employee contributions of 7.50% of
employees' annual compensation. Employers are required to contribute at an
actuarially determined rate. The actuarially determined contribution includes
funding for cost-of-living adjustments, noncontributory death benefits, and post-
retirement medical premiums.

Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both
TPAF and PERS. The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for
cost-of-living adjustments, noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement
medical premiums. Under current statute the District is a non-contributing
employer of TPAF (i.e. the State of New Jersey makes the employer contribution
on behalf of public school districts.

Contribution Requirements:
Three Year Trend Information for PERS

Annual Percentage
Year Ended Pension Cost of APC Net Pension
June 30, {APC) Contributed Obligation
2021 $446,972.00 100% $446,972.00
2020 396,525.00 100% 306,525.00
2019 391,429.00 100% 391,429.00

Three Year Trend Information for TPAF (On-behalf Contributions)

Annual Percentage
Year Ended Pension Cost of APC Net Pension
June 30, {APC) Contributed Obligation
2022 $3,058,654.00 100% $3,058,654.00
2020 2,228,304.00 100% 2,228,304.00
2019 1,890,461.00 100% 1,990,461.00

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66, the State of New Jersey reimbursed the
District for the years ended June 30, 2021, 2020 and 2019 $837,679.09,
$829,704.37, and $830,106.07 respectively for the employer's share of social
security contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their base salaries.
This amount has been included in the basic financial statements, and the
combining and individual fund statements and schedules as a revenue and
expenditure in accordance with GASB 27.
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Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

At June 30, 2021, the District reported a liability of $6,662,962.00 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1,
2019 which was rolled forward to June 30, 2020. The District's proportion of the
net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating members, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2020, the District's
proportion was 0.0408585565 percent, which was an increase of 0.0000935946
percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2019.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized pension expense of
$377,301.00 in the district-wide financial statements. This pension expense was
based on the pension plans June 30, 2020 measurement date.

At June 30, 2021, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to PERS from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflow of Inflow of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $121,322 $23,563
Changes of assumptions 216,154 2,789,845
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension pian investments 227,745
Changes in proportion and differences between District
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 334,166 94,740
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 477,413
$1,376,800 $2,908,148

The $477,413 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
resulting from school district contributions subsequent to the measurement date
(i.e. for the school year ending June 30, 2021, the plan measurement date is
June 30, 2020) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ended June 30, 2022,
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(Continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as
follows:

Year Ended
June 30 Amount
2021 ($788,195)
2022 (714,366)
2023 (387,722)
2024 (128,267)
2025 9,789

($2,008,761)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2020 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019, which rolled forward to
June 30, 2020. These actuarial valuations used the following assumptions:

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
Inflation rate:
Price 2.75% 2.75%
Wage 3.25% 3.25%
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 2.00%-6.00% 2.00%-6.00%
Based on Years of Based on Years of
Service Service
Thereafter 3.00%-7.00% 3.00%-7.00%
Based on Years of Based on Years of
Service Service
Investment Rate of Returh 7.00% 7.00%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-
Median Income Empioyee mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males
and 101.4% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base
year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based
on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table
with a 91.4% adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for females, and with
future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.
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{CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)
Actuarial Assumptions {Continued)

Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the
Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment
for males and 117.2% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from
the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based
on Scale MP-2020. The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation
were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1,
2014 to June 30, 2018.

Long-Term Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00% at both June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019) is determined by
the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of
Investment and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the
actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation)
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic rates of return for each major
asset class included in PERS's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2020 are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Assets Class Allocation Rate of Return
U.S. Equity 27.00% 7.71%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 13.50% 8.57%
Emerging Market Equity 5.50% 10.23%
Private Equity 13.00% 11.42%
Real Estate Assets 3.00% 9.73%
Real Estate 8.00% 9.56%
High Yield 2.00% 5.95%
Private Credit 8.00% 7.59%
Investment Grade Credit 8.00% 2.67%
Cash Equivalents 4.00% 0.50%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 1.94%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 3.40%

64



Colts Neck Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

NOTE 6: ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
{CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% and
6.28% as of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019, respectively. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from
plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers and the nonemployer contributing entity will be
based on 78% of the actuarially determined contributions for the State employer
and 100% of actuarially determined contributions for the local employers. Based
on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied
to all projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension
liability as of June 30, 2020, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed
above as well as what the collective net pension liability would be if it was
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-
percentage-point higher than the current rate

1% At Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
6.00% 7.00% 8.00%
District's proportionate share
of the net pension liability $8,453,512 $6,662,962 $5,240,482
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CONTINUED

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Public Employees
Retirement System (PERS). The report may be obtained at State of New Jersey
Division of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 295 Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0295 by
visiting hitp:/Awww.state.nj.us/ireasury/pensions.

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be
funded by the State in accordance with N.J.S.A 18:66-33. Therefore, these local
participating employers are considered to be in a special funding situation as defined
by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State is {reated as a nonemployer contributing
entity. Since the local participating employers do not contribute directly to the plan
{except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no net pension liability or
deferred outflows or inflows to report in the financial statements of the local
participating employers. However, the notes to the financial statements of the local
patticipating employers must disclose the portion of the nonemployer contributing
entities’ total proportionate share of the net pension liability that is associated with the
local participating employer.

The portion of the TPAF Net Pension Liability that was associated with the District
recognized at June 30, 2021 was as follows:

Net Pension Liability:

Districts proportionate share -0-
State's proportionate share
associated with the District $66,897,195
$66,897,195

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the fotal pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2019 which was rolled forward to June 30, 2020. The net
pension liability associated with the District was based on a projection of the District's
iong-term share of confributions to the pension plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating school districts and the State, actuarially determined.
At June 30, 2020, the proportion of the TPAF net pension liability associated with the
District was .1015921293% which was an increase of 0003369326 vercent from its
proportion measured as of June 30, 2019.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
{CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized on-behalf pension
expense and revenue of $3,663,448.00 in the government-wide financial statements
for contributions provided by the State. This pension expense and revenue was
based on the pension plans June 30, 2019 measurement date,

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2020 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019, which was rolled forward
to June 30, 2020. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
inflation rate:
Price 2.75% 2.75%
Wage 3.25% 3.25%
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 1.55%-4.45% 1.55%-4.55%
Based on Years of Based on Years of
Service Service
Thereafter 2.75%-5.65% 2.00%-5.65%
Based on Years of Based on Years of
Service Service
investment Rate of Return 7.00% 7.00%

Mortality Rate

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-
Median income Employee mortality table with a 93.9% adjustment for males and
85.3% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year
of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on
the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table
with a 114.7% adjustment for males and 99.6% adjustment for females, and with
future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.
Disability mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled
Retiree mortality table with a 106.3% adjustment for males and 100.3%
adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010
on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2020.
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(CONTINUED}

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund {TPAF) (Continued)
Mortality Rate (Continued)

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2015 to June 30,
2018.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00% and 7.00% at June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019
respectively) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the
Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits,
the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return
was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of returmn (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real
rates of return for each major asset class included in TPAF's target asset
aliocation as of June 30, 2020 are summarized in the following table;

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Assets Class Allocation Rate of Retumn
U.S. Equity 27.00% 7.71%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 13.50% 8.57%
Emerging Market Equity 5.50% 10.23%
Private Equity 13.00% 11.42%
Real Estate Assets 3.00% 9.73%
Real Estate 8.00% 9.56%
High Yield 2.00% 5.95%
Private Credit 8.00% 7.5%%
Investment Grade Credit 8.00% 2.67%
Cash Equivalents 4.00% 0.50%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 1.94%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 3.40%
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(CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.40% and
5.60% as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. This single blended discount
rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments of 7.00% for both June 30, 2020 and 2019, and a municipal
bond rate of 2.21% and 3.50% as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively,
based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-
exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or
higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate
assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current
member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be based
onh 78% of the actuarially determined contributions for the State. Based on those
assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2062.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of refurn on plan investments was applied
to projected benefit payments through 2062 and the municipal bond rate was
applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total
pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
Because the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability is zero,
consideration of potential changes in the discount rate is not applicable to the
District.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position.

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Teachers
Public and Annuity Fund (TPAF). The report may be obtained at State of New
Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 295 Trenton, New Jersey

08625-0295 hitp://www.state. nj.us/treasury/pensions
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Plan Description and Benefits Provided

The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan is a multiple-
employer defined benefit OPEB plan, which is administered on a pay-as-you-go
basis. Accordingly, no assets are accumulated in a qualifying trust that meets the
criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The State Health
Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan provides medical, prescription
drug, and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered
dependents of local education employers.

The employer contributions for the participating local education employers are
legally required to be funded by the State of New Jersey in accordance with
N.J.S.A 52:14-17.32f. Therefore, these local participating employers are
considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement
No. 75 and the State is treated as a nonemployer confributing entity. According
to N.J.S.A 52:14-17.32f, the State provides employer-paid coverage to
employees who retire from a board of education or county college with 25 years
or more of service credit in, or retires on a disability pension from, one or more of
the following plans: the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF), the Public
Employees' Retirement System (PERS), the Police and Firemen Retirement
System (PFRS), or the Alternate Benefit Program (ABP). Pursuant to Chapter 78,
P.L, 2011, future retirees eligible for postretirement medical coverage who have
less than 20 years of creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required to pay
a percentage of the cost of their health care coverage in retirement provided they
retire with 25 or more years of pension service credit. The percentage of the
premium for which the retiree will be responsible will be determined based on the
retiree’s annual retirement benefit and level of coverage.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan Membership
covered by the benefit terms consisted of the following:

Active Plan Members 216,804
Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries
Currently Receiving Benefits 149,304

Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries
Not Yet Receiving Benefits -0-
Total Plan Members 366,108
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Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability

The portion of the total Non-Employer OPEB Liability that was associated with
the District at June 30, 2021 was as follows:

Total OPEB Liability:

District's Proportionate Share $-0-
State's Proportionate Share associated
with the District 70,845,802
$70,845,802

The total Non-Employer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2020 was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, which was rolled forward to June 30,
2020.

The total Non-Employer OPEB liability was determined separately based on
actual data of the District.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized on-behalf post-
employment expense and revenue of $3,604,543 in the government-wide
financial statements for contributions provided by the State. This expense and
revenue was based on the plans June 30, 2020 measurement date.

At June 30, 2020, the District's proportion was .1044769814 percent, which was
a decrease of .0029988900 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2019,

The State, a nonemployer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal
obligation to make employer contributions to OPEB for qualified retired PERS,
TPAF/ABP and PFRS participants. The District’s proportionate share percentage
determined under paragraphs 193 and 203 through 205 of GASBS No. 75 is zero
percent. Consequently, the District did not recognize any portion of the collective
Non-Employer OPEB liability on the Statement of Net Position.

71



NOTE 7:

Colts Neck Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs

The total Non-Employer OPEB liability that was associated with the District as of
June 30, 2020 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019,
which was rolled forward {o June 30, 2020.The actuarial assumptions vary for
each plan member depending on the pension plan the member is enrolled in.
This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all
periods in the measurement:

June 30, 2020

TPAF/ABP PERS PERS
Inflation — 2.5%
Salary Increases
Through 2026 1.55-4.45%* 2.00-6.00%* 3.25-15.25%*
Thereafter 1.55-4.45%* 3.00-7.00%* Applied to

All Future Years

June 30, 2019

TPAF/ABP PERS PERS
CPI-2.5%
Salary Increases
Through 2026 1.55-3.05%* 2.00-6.00%* 3.25-15.25%*
Thereafter 1.55-3.056%* 3.00-7.00%* Applied to

All Future Years

*_ Based on Years of Service

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy "Teachers”
(TPAF/ABP), "General” (PERS), and "Safety" (PFRS) classification headcount-
weighted mortality {able with fully generational mortality improvement projections
from the central year using Scale MP-2020. Postretirement mortality rates were
based on the Pub-2010 "General" classification headcount-weighted mortality
table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central
year using Scale MP-2020. Disability mortality was based on the Pub-2010
"General" classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table with fully
generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale
MP-2020.
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Actuarial Assumptions and Other Input (Continued)

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 valuation were based on
the results of actuarial experience studies for the periods July 1, 2015— June 30,
2018, July 1, 2014 — June 30, 2018, and July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2018 for TPAF,
PERS and PFRS, respectively.

Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.6% and decreases
to a 4.5% long-term trend rate after seven years. For post-65 medical benefits,
the actual fully-insured Medicare Advantage trend rates for fiscal year 2021
through 2022 are reflected. The assumed post-65 medical trend is 4.5% for ali
future years. For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 7.0% and
decreases to a 4.5% long-term trend rate after seven years. For the Medicare
Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%.

Discount Rate

The discount rate for June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 was 2.21% and 3.50%
respectively. This represents the municipal bond return rate as chosen by the
Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which
includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of
AAJ/Aa or higher. As the long-term rate of return is less than the municipal bond
rate, it is not considered in the calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount
rate is set at the municipal bond rate.
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Changes in the Total Non-Employer OPEB [ iability

Shown below are details regarding The Total OPEB non-employer Liability
associated with the District for the measurement period from June 30, 2019 to
June 30, 2020.

Balance at 6/30/19 $42,345,875
Changes for the year:
Service cost $1,757,172
interest 1,522,857
Differences between expected
and actual experience 13,474,788
Changes in assumptions or
other inputs 12,941,094
Membership Contributions 37,383
Benefit payments - Net (1,233,367)
Net changes 28,499,027
Balance at 6/30/20 $70,845,802

Sensitivity of the Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability to Chandes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents the total Non-Employer OPEB liability associated with the
District as of June 30, 2020, caiculated using the discount rate as disclosed
above as well as what the total Non-Employer OPEB liability would be if it was
calculated using a discount rate that is 1 -percentage point lower or 1-percentage
point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2020

1.00% At Discount 1.00%
Decrease (1.21%) Rate (2.21%) Increase (3.21%)
State of New Jersey's
Proportionate Share of
the total Non-Employer
OPEB Liability associated
with the District $85,408,271 $70,845,802 $59,459,354
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Sensitivity of the Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability to Changes in
Healthcare Trends

The following presents the total Non-Employer OPEB liability associated with the
District as of June 30, 2020, calculated using the healthcare trend rate as
disclosed above as well as what the total Non-Employer OPEB liability would he
if it was calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is 1- percentage point lower
or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2020

1.00% Healthcare Cost 1.00%
Decrease Trend Rate Increase
State of New Jersey's
Proportionate Share of
the total Non-Employer
OPEB Liability associated
with the District $57,189,120 $70,845,802 $87,107,874

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Non-Employer OPEB Liability

At June 30, 2020, the State reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to retired school empioyee’s Non-Employer OPEB
Liability associated with the District from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflow of Inflow of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected
and actual experience 3 10,756,238 § 9,581,274
Changes of assumptions 12,050,638 8,083,907
Changes in proportion 1,857,001 20,323
$ 24663877 3 17,685,504
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OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Non-Employer OPEB Liability (Continued)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to the State’s proportionate share of the total Non-Employer
OPEB Liability associated with the District will be recognized in OPEB expense
as follows:

Measurement
Period Ended
June 30, Amount

2021 $412,721

2022 $412.721

2023 $412,721

2024 $412,721

2025 $412,721

Total Thereafter $4,914 770

$6,978,373

In accordance with GASBS No. 75, the District's proportionate share of school
retirees OPEB is zero. There is no recognition of the allocation of proportionate
share of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources in the
financial statements.

State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employee Plan Information

The New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits issues publicly available
reports on the OPEB plan. Those reporis may be obtained by writing to the
Division of Pension and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, NJ 08625-0295 or on
their website at hitp://www state nj.us/treasury/pensions/financial-reports.shiml.

LITIGATION

The District’s counsel advises that there is no litigation, pending litigation, claims,
contingent liabilities, unasserted claims or assessments or statutory violations
which involve the School District and which might materially affect the District's
financial position.
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NOTE 9:

NOTE 10:

Year Ended
June 30,

Colts Neck Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021
CONTINGENCIES

The District receives financial assistance from the State of New Jersey and the
U.S. Government in the form of grants. Entitlement to the funds is generally
conditional upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreements
and applicable regulations, including the expenditure of the funds for eligible
purposes, The State and Federal grants received and expended in the 2020-
2021 fiscal year were subject fo the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB
Circular 15-08 which mandates that grant revenues and expenditures be audited
in conjunction with the District's annual audit if expenditures for federal or state
programs exceed $750,000. Findings and questioned costs, if any, relative to
federal and state financial assistance programs are discussed in the Single Audit
Section, Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. in addition, all grants and
cost reimbursements are subject to financial and compliance audits by the
grantors. The District's management does not believe any such audit would result
in material amounts of disallowed costs.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage
to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and
natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance The District maintains insurance coverage
covering each of those risks of loss. The administration believes such coverage
is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to the District. Seftled
claims have not exceeded the insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal
years.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance The District has
elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under
the “Benefit Reimbursement Method”. Under this plan, the District is required to
reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its
former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed
quarterly for amounts due to the State. Charges are applied to the
Unemployment Compensation Claims Payable first, and any remaining charges
are applied to the Unemployment Compensation budget appropriation. The
following is a summary of District contributions, employee contributions,
reimbursements to the State for benefits paid and the ending balance of the
District for the current and previous two years:

Analysis of Balance 06/30/2021

Board State
Contributions Employee Amount Ending Unempioyment
and Interest Contributions Reimbursed Balance Insurance Payable

Resfricted
Fund Balance

2021
2020
2019

$74.71 $75,668.35 $54,181.80 $300,735.07 $21,487.55
1,798.81 51,932.43 35,266.02 279,172.81 NIA
2,235.60 43,306.48 27,831.93 260,707.59 NIA
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NOTE 11:

Colts Neck Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g. unused vacation and sick
leave) as directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
16 (GASB 18), "Accounting for Compensated Absences”. A liability for
compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and
employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in
accordance with the District's personnel policy. Upon termination, employees are
paid for accrued vacation. The District's policy permits employees to accumulate
unused sick leave and carry forward the amount to subsequent years. Upon
retirement, employees shall be paid by the District for the unused sick leave in
accordance with the Districts agreements with the various employee unions.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the governmental fund types
are recorded in the district - wide statement of net position. As of June 30, 2021,
a liability existed for compensated absences for governmental fund-types in the
district- wide Statement of Net Position of $720,795.00.

For additional descriptive information, see Note1: Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies.
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Colts Neck Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

NOTE 12: FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

General Fund The table below reflects the District's Fund Balance at June 30,
2021 on both a GAAP (Exhibit B-1) and Budgetary (Exhibit C-1) basis including
the required adjustment related to the last state aid payment which under GAAP
is not recognized:

Budgetary GAAP
Basis Adjustment Basis
Restricted:
Excess Surplus:
Designated for Subsequent
Year's Expenditures 3 298,892.56 $ 299,892.56
Capital reserve 3,192,183.98 3,192,183.98
Emergency Reserve 93,000.00 93,000.00
Maintenance Reserve 690,885.00 690,885.00
impact Aid Reserve 2,971,394.92 2,971,394.92
State Unemployment insurance 287,247.52 287,247.52
Assigned:
Designated for Subsequent
Year's Expendifures 584,504.44 584,504 .44
Encumbrances 62,965.68 62,965.69
Unassigned 2,223,498.06 (115,902.00) 2,107,596.06

$ 1040557217 $ (115,902.00) §  10,289,670.17
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Colts Neck Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

NOTE 13: CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS — BUDGETARY BASIS

Calculation of Excess Surplus In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, as
amended by P.L. 2007, c73 (S1701), the Restricted Fund Balance - Excess
Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive
Educational Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school
districts are required to reserve General Fund fund balance at the fiscal year end
of June 30 if the District did not appropriate a required minimum amount as
budgeted fund balance in the subsequent year’s budget.

General Fund Expenditures:
Fiscal Year Ended, June 30 2021 $30,688,010.81

Increased by:
Transfer from Capital Outlay

to Capital Projects $45,280.00
Transfer to Enterprose Fund to
cover deficit 224,366.90

269,646.90

30.957,657.71
Decreased by:

Reimb. TPAF Social Security Contributions $837,679.09
Reimb. TPAF Pension Contributions 4,095,000.00
Capital Leases 1,339,288.84
6,271,967.93
Adjusted General Fund Expenditures $24,685,689.78
Excess Surplus Percentage 4.00%
$987,427.59
Increased by:
Impact Aid $673,844.00
Extraordinary Aid 721,906.00
Non-Public Transportation Aid 51,620.00
1,447,370.00
Maximum Unreserved/Undesignated
General Fund Balance $2,434,797.59
Actual Unreserved/Undesignated
General Fund Balance 2,223 498.06
Excess Surplus -0-

Based on the preceding calculation, as of June 30, 2021, $299,892.56 is reporied as
Restricted Fund Balance Excess Surplus Designated for Subsequent Years
Expenditure and is required to be appropriated for property tax relief in the 2021-
22 budget.

80



NOTE 14:

NOTE 15:

Colts Neck Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The following interfund balances remained on the balance sheet at June 30,
2021:

Interfund Balance

Fund Receivable Payable
General Fund $ 230,860.18 $
Special Revenue Fund 43,533.28
Proprietary Fund 187,326.90

$ 230,860.18 $ 230,860.18

All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that short-term loans
were disbursed and payments between funds were received.

CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was established by the District for the accumulation of
funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The
capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is
included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in
the district's approved Long Range Facilities Pian (LRFP). Upon submission of
the LRFP to the Depariment of Education, a district may increase the balance in
the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget
certified for taxes or by transfer by Board resolution at year end (June 1
to June 30) of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line item appropriations,
or both. A district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express
approval of the voters has been obtained by either a separate proposal at budget
time or by a special question at one of the four special election dates authorized
by N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. BA:23A-14.1(g), the balance in the
account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital
projects in its approved LRFP.
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Colts Neck Township Schoofi District
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

NOTE 16: CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

The activity of the capital reserve during the year ended June 30, 2021, is as

follows:
Balance, July 1, 2020 $ 2,748,228.46
Interest Earnings $ 570.49
Increases:
Board Resolution dated 06/30/2021 500,000.00
500,570.49
3,248,798.95
Withdrawals:
Budget Amendment 12/16/2020 $ 11,334.97
Budget Amendment 05/04/2021 45,280.00
56,614.97
Balance, June 30, 2021 $ 3,192,183.98

The withdrawals from the capital reserve were for use in a DOE approved
facilities project, consistent with the District’'s Long Range Facilities Plan (L.RFP).

NOTE 17: EMERGENCY RESERVE ACCOUNT

in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-41¢c(1), an emergency reserve account was
established by the District. The emergency reserve account is maintained in the
general fund.

The account balance is not to exceed $250,000 or one percent of the district's
general fund budget up to a maximum of $1,000,000, whichever is greater.
Withdrawals require approval by the Commissioner.

There was no activity in the Emergency Reserve Account during FY2021.

At June 30, 2021, the balance of the Emergency Reserve Account was
$93,000.00.
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NOTE 18:

Colts Neck Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

MAINTENANCE RESERVE ACCOUNT

On June 19, 2014, the District, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A7G-13,
established a Maintenance reserve account in the amount of $250,000.00. The
Maintenance reserve account is maintained in the general fund.

A district board of education or board of school estimate, as appropriate, may
increase the balance in the maintenance reserve account by appropriating funds
in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes.

A district board of education or board of school estimate, as appropriate, may by
resolution withdraw such funds from the maintenance reserve account and
appropriate into the required maintenance account lines at budget time or any
time during the year for use on required maintenance activities for a school
facility as reported in the comprehensive maintenance plan pursuant fo N.J.A.C.
BA;26A-4.

The district board of education shall ensure that the maintenance reserve
account balance does not, at any time, exceed four percent of the replacement
cost of the schoo! district’s school facilities for the current year. If the account
exceeds this maximum amount at June 30, the district board of education shall
reserve and designate such excess in the subsequent year's budget.

The activity in the maintenance reserve during the year ended June 30, 2021, is
as follows:

Balance, July 1, 2020 3 356,965.00
Deposits:
Board Resolution dated 06/30/21 500,000.00
856,965.00
Withdrawals:
FY2021 Budget $ 150,000.00
Board Resolution dated 09/16/2020 16,080.00
166,080.00
Balance, June 30, 2021 3 690,885.00
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NOTE 19:

Colts Neck Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

IMPACT AID RESERVE ACCOUNT

The District, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A;7F-41, established an impact Aid
reserve account. The Impact Aid reserve account is maintained in the general
fund.

A district board of education or board of school estimate, as appropriate, may
increase the balance in the Impact Aid reserve account by appropriating funds in
the annual general fund budget certified for taxes, however transfers in to the
reserve account shall not exceed the amount of federal Impact Aid received in
the fiscal year.

A district board of education or board of school estimate, as appropriate, may by
resolution withdraw such funds from the Impact Aid reserve account and
appropriate to finance the district's general fund or to finance school facilities
projects, in a manner consistent with federal law at budget time or any time
during the year. The total amount of funds on deposit in the reserve account shall
not be limited,

The activity in the Impact Aid reserve during the year ended June 30, 2021, is as
follows:

Balance, July 1, 2020 $ 2,584,227.00
Increases:
Board Resolution dated 06/30/21 623,067.00
3,207,294.00
Withdrawals;
Budget Amendment 07/22/2020 $ 8,500.00
Budget Amendment 08/10/2020 19,794.00
Budget Amendment 09/02/2020 25,670.00
Budget Amendment 09/16/2020 24.000.00
Budget Amendment 11/11/2020 38,641.00
Budget Amendment 11/23/2020 36,291.08
Budget Amendment 12/16/2020 9,239.00
Budget Amendment 02/17/2021 73,764.00
235,899.08
Balance, June 30, 2021 $ 2,971,394.92
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NOTE 20:

NOTE 21:

NOTE 22:

Colts Neck Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Board offers its employees a choice of various deferred compensation plans
created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Sections 403(b) and 457,
The plans, which are administered by the entities listed below, permits
participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred
under the plans are not available to empioyees until termination, retirement,
death or unforeseeable emergency. The plan administrators are as follows:

Metropolitan Life Insurance Company
VALIC
ING
AXA Equitable
INVENTORY
inventory in the Food Service Fund at June 30, 2021 consisted of the following:

Food and Supplies $5,157.39

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The District has evaluated subsequent events occurring after the financial
statement date through February 1, 2022 which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. The District has determined that there
are no material subsequent events that need to be disclosed.
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Colts Neck Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

NOTE 23: PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

As of July 1, 2020 the District implemented GASB Statement No. 84 Fiduciary
Activities (GASB 84). Certain agency funds previously accounted for activities
that are not considered fiduciary in nature and are now reported in the
Governmental Funds. The District restated the net position and fund balance of
the funds indicated below to appropriately reflect the June 30, 2020 balances as
follows:

District-Wide Financial Statements:

Governmental
Activities
Beginning Net Position 06/30/20 $16,5653,158.01
Adjustments:
Unemployment Compensation 279,172.81
Student Activity Fund Balance 26,348.87
Beginning Net Position
06/30/20 (As restated) $16,858,679.69
Special
Fund Financial Statements: Revenue
General Fund Fund Fiduciary Fund
Fund Balance 06/30/20 $9,214,910.88 $1,528,239.28
Adjustments:
Unemployment Compensation Fund 279,172.81 (279,172.81)
Student Activity Fund Balance 26,348.87
Fund Balance 06/30/20 {As restated) $9,494,083.69 $26,348.87 -0-
Fiduciary Fund
Liabilities Balance 06/30/20 $673,469.99
Payroll deductions and withholdings ($647,121.12)
Due to student groups (26,348.87)
Liabilities 06/30/20 (As restated) $-0-

86



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - Part i
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

88




25619 26°800°J02 vO'EZ9 402 [ 00'208'02)
Zialg 9epLllL 00°EEE'T COEEL'Z
090 00T POL 0% ES¥ AL D9'PES'9L 00'856'LT
080 $9'9EE'00L ¥ 2£9'00L vreze'ol 00'LL9'06
147988511 PO'TLLGLED Le'0ee'zel'a [CEESET Q0'G6ZTLE'D
SFILESE $§°200°CL 000ze'le (O
SLLIWEE 50'884'51E 8.'66L'8VE sLTFOL 00' 22868
05'vR0'e: E9'LA0'GLE £L'g5L'E81 SLBEL'0S 00°210'e¥E
sZize'st L6°228'79 P08 {82/986'p) pooes'e
0se'L 00'g6L'LE ov'get'ae 00Z6L'LE DO'0SZ'L
0059901 00'098'82 00'525'6E 00'625'12 ocooo'el
89'Z6Z'15E'T 98'Z6Z'15E'T 8989084 00'996'6ZE'Z
£8'159'69 8E'EIYLLLE 08'$9078L'e (0z's92'92) oosiFeLZ'e
70786 86'2EEELE 00'SLEPLS 00'599'8 00'059'505
SE'B08'I6'9 GE4GE'6EG 08 CO'BPD'BL0YT (c0°508'28) 00°'756'560'¥Z
00 %P8 58 QOPraEls
o'EER'ELS 00btaE/S
B0'G0Z'90L°S B0'EB1'915'0 00'788'60Z 3 log'g06'/8) 00'668'29¢ |
00'LL6 00'228
00'899'946 00'895'9.6
80649488 60897268
00'Loz'es 0010285
00'PS6'850'E 00'PSE'850'E
00029’ LS 00'0RsLs
00'060'68 00°050'68 00°060'68
00'§84°944 00'59L'84L (00°608'28) 00'069'7E8
00°806'122 00'906°LZL
GOBLL'DPE CO'BLL'PYE 006LL'FPE
9z 651y 9L PLE'GEG'CE CO'GS0'AZE ZZ 00'550'828'28
LAvioe [YR'71%
BP0L5 804G
SOPLE 8L O'PL0'2LE 00'000'52 00'000'5Z
(00°c08'e8) {0'006'E3 00°008'€8
% 00%SL'6LATE 00'GSLBLLEE 00§61 '6LL2E
TEVEGATAN LY TH5arE vNiE FINTGWCNTAY LT g
JE1EYHOAYS ONY SUIASNYEL TNIDEO
FONYIHYA 1a9ang
WIZ3Rs

w40 LIHX3

sy eBenbuen) Jopue Buluies |eloL
seiiddng eiauasy
UOBONUISUI J0f SOURIES JBUO
SIBLORI) 30 SaueERS
esy] ebenbuen Jospue Buiies
‘uaeanpd (eneds - uegonusy|

sweiBosd remnbes 0

SHOOGXEL

saiddns [Riauas

{s8uss 00 - 00F) $80inas paseydind JBLEO

S8IAIBS [BOILDSL PESELDIN

SAoIAIAS [BUOIEINPE - [BUGISSS;0Ud peseudIng
‘ucansu: peynquisipun - sweabosd Jeniey

sJaloea) jo seuees
:uoparisu awoy - sweiboid tenbayy
-9 sepes
§-| sepelo
uapefiopuy
:swesbo:d Jenbey ~ uenonnsuy|
FSNIEHT INFHUND

STANLANIAX3
SBNUBABY [BIOL

SBUNOS [BISpad |BI0L
Py peduy
$A0IN0G [Blapay

SPTNDE SiTYS BI0]
asurunsy| Aingesia wus ) Buol
peefiong UCU-EIPSIN WSLIBINGY 1504
£a160png-UAU-UGRNALILOT D8G D0 Syl PASINGLISY
peIRbpNG-UOL 6 O'N JVdL Jeyeq-u0
pe1eBpng-UOU-SUORNAUILOY JVdL HRUBG-UO
SPIY BIEIS JBUND
piy Aunoeg eausbalen
iy LonesnEs eweds esucbalen
piy AleuipIoeIxs
piv uoenodsues) jeaucheied

$8a1heG eooT (B0,
SBNUBABY SNOBLEBIIBISIN PEIOLISSY JALRO
SpUng AAeseY [BIdRD Lo pawey jsalalu)|
S8nUBASY SNOBUEB|IBOSIA PEIJNISAIIN
ST JBYIO Waly $884 uonepodsues)
Ang X2l 19907

'S90UN0G 8007
'SHANIAZY

89



80°GBL'ELY S0 6aY BOLGL FRTEE 2Z850'eee (e
£E8BL'ECH 18'95L' 196 0T 8Y5'Ees (0w 24¥'64) 00929 E9L
000929 000092 CO'09E'8 0009E6
£0'092'9 05 009'e 00'09E'8 0009 6
000929 o0us'T 0009’8 00°C9e's
EPELL'GL L6'¥B1'09 00'B0S'SL (00'2ep'0}) [
00'862"% 00'68%'9 00292, [T
£6'266'% 2072802 000806 000506
00° 204" 00'998°L DO'ELS'E OO'ELSE
0522404 05'66288 ov'ezs'sr {co'zayoL) 00'50P'85
9920129 A 00'p6e’ LaL 00'000°Z 00 P5E'E6
[EECA ESThs 0000E'eL 00°'00e'EL
rL5r8 LY oo08s's 00°000'2 00'095'e
82600'L8 |48 7-514 00'PES'Z8 00'¥e5'28
00'00E'E 00°L1E'E8 0031998 c0'119'98
00'COE'E 00°COE'E CODOEE

[ AR 00 HLE'ER o0’ LLE'ES
YT R8E Ve 968'0/¢'028 0ZGLZLLY {08'566°0.L) 00'14ZT8F
peEIY'e 957/Cy 00062 00'006'Z
0B'GZrZE O Bre'sIE 0Z'GLE'BOY {0s566'02) 00'LLE'SLY
86200521 LLB56'626'2 L9680 £ 82041 '¥6L 00'CE6'CLET
YE'EEGGL 90'69E'282 r0'006'89E (Sp'8L9'PE} 00 2ig'eor
11802 8696 Bb ALY 00822} DO0SLT
65°006's8 00085'gl 56°087'98 (6v'eRe'vy) 00 ¥98'6P L
0E'GZr'S 0L918'0L2 A4 {00'tav'1e) OC'E0LOLE
8 BE9'P9 ZZrLa'L9s &0 PELIZY 6008 661 00 prl e
P5'LERY OrI00L c0'g98 vl 00'9ze’s 000rLL

£9'690°208 6907408 Lb'889'601 00'LBL 8L
6 4L4'88 E90LPPFE Z9'881'v0E 29'590'78 00'E28' L2
£9'pra're X 85'6L9°206'L 951807 [
LERES Y 8021 00'9p0eL {oovss’L) 00°G08'vL
00°946'82 00'8/6'82 00'9/6'92
ZLPR0L 9BT9E'E58'L 85°166°CO8'L % 85LpE'Y 00'9ST 9’|

TTTEvEOATANT] WOLOY T RIS SINIRANINY THEnE
[ANBYHOAYS OGNV SHDISNYHL THIDHO
FONYIHYA 130004

[ FEERT]

«b* 00 LEIHX3

USHIRASY - &AL

SWRIBOU G EUORINSSU JOUIC) [BI0L

[OOUDS JRING [RIQ ]

UDRONASU; J00UDS JOLULING 18101

STUEIRS

UOIORSY| (00UOS JBLULING

SollBiLY pasasuods |00UDS [B1I0L

S130iq0 PG
s(eusiely pue saldéns

($019% DDG-00E) SEOIMBS PBsELINY

sauees

suslay pasosuods jooyss

SARAIDY JBNILIND-0D pelosuods :00u8 RIS L

slReuGiRiy pue selddng

{s8U8s Q05-00E) SETMBS PASEYCInG

seueleS

SAYANIY JEIILNG-07 PeIosuodS (00UOS
UORIIUISU) B30 UG0S [BUOREDOA,

uononass doseonps [eabulg ol

sayddng |eeuss
SIOUDES | jO SBUB(ES

weganNEy| Uolesrp3 [enbulig

[elpaiuey / SIDS JIsed B0 L

seyddng RleUss
s/ayoea] Jo SRURES
(BIpaLlaY / SENS JIseg

uogesnpa [ewpads jeoL

BWIL ~ [N - SBAIIGRSI |OSUYISBI [FI0L

sieualew pue selddng

uaioruisy| Jof SeLBles JLI)

SI84IBA JO SBLR(ES

Bk ~ N4 - SARIIARSK] |aoyaselg

wspny {elal

senddng miauasy

HORDNNSLY 10) SeUB|eg JBUIC

siayIEB), JO SOLBRS
wsgny

JBIUBT) BOIN0SOY / WOOH SIN0SAY [2)0L

salddng (ejeuan

UORSNILSU) JO} SBLBIRS JBLIC

SJAVIRaL Jo souRERS

Jejual) SIn0Say J W00y a%inosey

90



SSEPL'LL 96°52F'2C9 CEYEED 006897 00'168'5/5
00'62 00'320'9 000508 D000L'E CO0SEE
gL IEL'L S295412 5 188'TE 0098222
05'8PPY 08102 0059y 000se'y
L9ERS'LL SPeir'ss ZE0L0'L9 ZEOGYOE 00'002'9L

noese'ay on'0se'ar 00058'sy

89879867 89'E79'8Y 8981561 0501’8y
90 SL'00zeeZ \E002'E62 £ P68 00°S0E 982

PoTEET PrEsEY by eEL £ e000C |

(00'coo'g} 00000'e

ko Z8049'02 BY'0L9'T 1] o00L9'vE

BELEL'YST 8e'lel'vaz &£'301'6 00'9EP'PS2
8E'LOECYE LE'S/p'sey B9°0L1 651 {1£¥68'SZ) 00°1/5'58y
BELOS'PE Legirsey 69'9LL'65Y Y T) 00'1/9587
L8'200'ce 61'808'044 00'9/68'408 00'L56'RE 00520797
S¥'Ba9'E 66'LEQ'E ) (a581) R
1589 SU8EL'S 85°902' (rvoL) 0OLLE'S
STRLZEL SLBRL'YS 00'655'26 00'99r'62 00°000'8$
09'ee0'st Or'8rs'es DO'Z8S 969 CO'899'6 00'LE'9RS
G8IEV'EL S0 10Z 252 00°'6£9'952 00 9PE'S 00°'888'092
CO00Z 00522 00'szY 00522 00°062
$6'899 GOVEL'E 10'86L'E LOELE 00°028'¢
86028 oo'sel 66596 (Lotyz) 000021
U'BRLLL 00285 CO'D0E'SL 0000851

QOB5LgrZ 00’651 'SPT a0'938'y 00ELLLPZ
1£'910'6 69'¥39LTL 00'L¥L'9EL 00LpL'OEL
1£9/0'6 BOPBE L 00'L¥7.L'GEL 00'Lbi'gEL
B89 59V°28 24 089'652 00°9rL'eeE {00ZRE'22) 00'8E5°098
8E°691'S. [ 00811361 loozecee) 00'0L$'02e
8L008°L L LTLEEL 00'820°0y L $ $ ooszoovl

TSTavE0OAvINTY TNV T SINIRONTAY 1550nY
318YHOAYS ONY SHQASNYYL TIWNIDEO
FONYIHYA 139an9
20z GE INNT Q3GNS UVIA 17
159 GNV L R NN= N

THIZIRS

wb=0u LIBIHXE

Sweai APMS P E0L
S18{a0 BUIO
SeUBlel pue seyddng
(seuas gOS-00Y) SESIES pasBYng JeIC
SEOIAJBS BUORBINDS {BLOISSAJ0I POSELDINA
SWUEISISSY (BDLA|0) PUE |BLERIDRS J0 SALRRS
HEIS [BUOESBIOIZ 18I JO SBLEIES

swes ApMS PIND

FURPINGD [BIO4,
s[eualel pue secdng
SBANIBS PpEsRUING JOUIG
SUEIS|SSY (BOUA|D PUE [BUBLBIO0RS JO SOLRIRS
LIS [BuoIsSRIaId JOUIO JO saLeeS
‘aouRpInG

SEOBG B - SIUBPMS - $8YIAeS Woddng seuy ela),
HORONUISLY 10} SpIY
se0puag B - SluePMG - seolueg Haddng JeliO

SEOAIBG PRIRIEY B Ld 'LO 'Woseds - $80iMBE Hoddng Jeyic) (210),
spelac Jeuo
sieuejey pue sayddng
SBAAIBS [BUCHBINPY ~ [BUQISSBJ0Id PaSEUN
saleeg
1S0IAES PEIRISY B Ld 'LO Yoeeds - se2ies Hoddng Jenio

SRS URSH [B10L
sioala) ;B0
seuslel pue sayddng
SBDIAIBS PASEYDING JOUIO
SEMAIBS [ED{ULDS ), PUR [BLOISSSJ0L PAsEYOINg
sauees
ISEOIABS LYEOH

SOUAISS HIOM BITCS PUE BIUBPLALY (€13,
souees

15E0IBS YoM (B0 PUR BaUBRUSlY

LOROTLISU - SMIpUBdXT PANQUISIPUC: {BI0L
21EIS Uym paddexpueH Bu 1o} S100UDS BXEAUd O} LORIRL
lejoedy - B1ELS BUl UIUHM $.9'37 JOUIO OF Lo,
MONIRASLE
‘seinppuedxy peinguisun

N



ZEBEC'ZL 90'859'95¢2 00280112 {00'Za% L01) 00°68% ¢E
BLEEE 6 [WAET 00687 Gl 0008y G
00'656'C 006212 LOvEL'Y 00'¥EL't
00'0£8'L 00'0ES'L 00°0£9'L
200 26'660'2Y 00°005'28 (00'008'£2) 0000099
S6'80% S0'90Z'602 00844602 (00'256'2L) 00'699'€82
[T %] 69°C09' LT CO'8YE LEL 00'LEL'EY 00'ghL'6PL
CO'S8E Y 00’538 00'00%'Z 005852
6L 6 459' L1 26441 oosrLL
Dg'IEE'S 87’16’ BO'EZE'LL {28'266) o0'LEezL
\ZEL IR 00 L6'PL 0O LES'PL
QO'BEELYL COBEB'LYL 00 LES'® 0080P'EEL
{oorans's) 00008'S
¥80 80'929'65 T6'0Z9'65 ZE0 00'929'68
250re'es ZVLLLLLE 80°Z65'0LE 806LZ 00EEL0LE
00°bLGDLL 00'bL60LL $  oUNt'se $  oog9Tsel
TTEvHOAYANT IOV I350n8 1vNi3 CRNERNERY TIBGNE
I EYHOAYS ONY SHIISNVHL INIDHO
IONVINYA L3oang
T FERLEKTERS] g
PHTHEAS

w0 LigHX3

_CP_D_._ {00UDS | sadiABS BINBY [BUOlEINDT (B10]
s[eusiew pue senddng
(88UaS (05-00Y) S82AISS PESBLIING JBUID
HRIS PBIISH/EEIEUNLS | 0) WUSWARY LONBSEA Dashul
sinjeuipion? (eaBojouyan ] jo seuees
soueesg
“AleIgI 100UDG / SEDIAIBS BIPAYY [BUOHESNES

YIS [RUOIDNSU] - SEIASS Hoddng o
1 SE0IAIBS UOROILISU] J0 JuaweAaldu] [B10)
slosjac Jeng
siRUSjRW pue sayddng
{005-00%) Sa0iAles PBSEUOING JBLIO
SOAS YIBL PUB JAId YN JBUIOD
seloeog Aoeieln g ylely ‘sioleyiived Jo 1es
salees U0
"SISSY {20U8ID) PUR [BUBIAI08S 40 SALRIRS
UBIS [BUDISSBJ0) JBLIC) 0 SBLBIES
USSNASUE Jo Sio81edng Jo SeURES
HEIS iBuoRonLsy; - saspues poddng Jsyio
SEINBS LONANASY] [0 IUSLUBACIHL]

92



65 LEE'EZ L oze'eal 00°ZSLPLE QU0gL'EE 00°'Z09' 181
D0C3E'T 000582 00'0SE'E
Zeiee't 36899 000820k 00'062'08
18'65E'SE GEFLGYE ZEPL8'6LL {800 00'68'611
00'280'S 00/80's 00°280'S
BO'0SL'LL SUOGL°LL BO'OSL'EE 00'COC' ¥y
8.7/62'9 Zzigg'Lee 00'G28' /98 (a0} 00628498
00698 0’55k L 00°Gee 2 000ZEZ
TPt 828518 000N’ - {00086
L2082 04961 00'00L'2 - 000042
azare’L 05°425'c 960 ¥Z'apL) D0'SZ6'Y
OU'00E"LT 00°00E" .2 00'8vk o0'lsL'LZ
vZ'626'028 PZETE0LE $Z0 00'626'0ZE
L£°289'9 £9'601 PO 00" 2PE'09S [ 0009’89
S6'905°6 569056 G8'LSZ 009526
¥5BEE'E £ oR SOEBL’L {se'L2g's) 00'SIE'S
o0'0sr'L 00'058 CO00E'E 00002
2709z £5'¢09'58 OU'E98'06 00°'gLE'2E o048l
820 ZL2TS'66 CO'EZS'66 0'LeY 0O'ZPO'e6
8081 2ETBL'OSY 00715805y G0’ Lag'osy
69'98'89 LL'E09'90% 00'08¥'GL8 00'265'9 00° 289698
08'{¥e 0Z8L0CH 0008221 00'08ETL
zL698 82'e80'e 00°¢96'e C0'E96'E
©9'829'08 ce'ata'9e (g8 LageL) 00°000'CS
cEEYS'Y £E6'6PG'Y {¢oro02) 000053
Sezee'e SESE'E S8'Z5E 00°000'E
$5°025'S L9°LL8'05 zZesl'es {arzg) 00'GYE'9s
oLEsL'Y 0E'808 aco0s'y {ooooL) 00°006'%
ab e z5296' 00Ze'Y 00028y
oogez'a 00'582'8 QOZLY [elsk>-TA0A
000LL'S oOB0E'LL CO'BLF'SL 00'826'S 00'0ss'zL
00004t CO005ve 00'002'92 00'00Z'92
00°058' L 0008514 0000’y 00005'48
SEPOFLL SEFOr'LL SEVOrEL
S0'595'6 p6'Ora's0e 00'98€'51E 00'98E'GLE
0068051 00'196°05 00°006'59 00000 6¢ 000068
00052 00062 00054
ovie's 00'199'8 00'6LT'LL (oo'g2L'e) 00°000'LZ
005186 00°005'e on'erLzL (00'528°2) 0005L'sE
$ 000026 $ 00002'5E £ C0002'5E
TTEvSOAVINTT TNV T VRIZ FINIRGNINY TI50NE
[B1EYHOAY S ONY SHIASNYML WNIDEO
SONVIIYA 139an8
[FEER

wbQu LIBIHXT

ABQIOUYDS | EORBLION| BAEASIUILPY (E10],
s109lg0 B0
s[eUSiE pue Seyddng
S8ANIBS peseudIngd JaID
HPIS PRINaN/POIBUMIG L O} WBWARY UOIEDEA DESHUN
SBUB(ES
AGojouyoe [ BONBLIoK| SAJRISILILDY

@ANGG (BAVB]D €101,
sainjpLedxy SNOBUE(|easiy
s{euslely pue senddns
(005-00F) $80IM8S LAIN DSIN
SINBS [BUOISSBIOIG BSBYIING JBLIQ
SE0IAI8S [BUOISSE)01d PESEYIING
soyRRS

BINEG [eAUe]

UDNRASIUILDY (0042 Saalaeg Loddng fejo)

spafio 18uo
seualep pue sapddng
{s8yes DOG-00Y)SBaINIBS PESBUIING JBUIO
SIUBISISSY (aL8(D) PUE (BLRISISES JO SBLBIES
SIBUOISS0IA JALIY) JO SHUBES
sjedinuuy 188y / SIRdiuLd Jo seueles

UONERSIILIDY [DOLDS $89iA:8S Woddng

UORBNSIURLPY |BIBUED) SBaes woddns [eol
seng pue seng] diysieqiew 309
sainypuedxg snoaueyeasiy
BuIsIC) eup suebe suswebpny
seyiddng Bunee Auiirll 9snoH ~U) 208
seiiddns elauag
s2InpUedxs SNORUB|IsIY
osuadxy [BARI), piEOR
auouds|e ] / SUGHRIRINUILIOD
$80IAISS [BOIULDS | DESBYZING JBIC
seaes Bupesuibuzemaauusiy
$8684 PNY [IUOD [PWB PUB Binypuadxy
sedineg jebe
HEIS PRuey/MBBUILLS | O3 JUSWARY LOIBIBA PRSIV
saueResg

UORBNSIULIPY [Blauesy seoineg peddng

saniMag BuiRl 4BIS (BuCHONISU [2I0L
sigualew pue seyddng
(008 ~¢OY) se0IMIES PasEYRInd B0
‘SBOAG JELONBANDY - [BUGISSBI0LY PASEULIN JBLA0
SINOH JBULINS NS Jo s1osAedng 10 saleiRS
saapiag Buiiel s Yelg (Buoionsy

93



GO'L6S'8S ©6'Z8L 'zt 00755981 00'P5S'86L
6000 [ 00'00F
9gPEL's rL'88) 00°E0v'S 00°€0v's
[F:91¥4"} 60284'L [iixevead 00°000'¥4
8TEL6'LZ TLTUT'ST oUere'rs 00'S86'C 00'L82'LS
00°595'82 D0'OYE'EE 00505221 {00'586'2) 00'CEY'SEL
£8'69L 0F ECOEE'EY 91'008'SL (Feeri'zl) 0005968
ZTIELEL 8/'202'6Z 0058638 (00°61272) 000SL LY
slevL'y [E:-1-0n -8 00°005'64 00'008'84
9z'Lez's vLBSLT 0000’6 00'C00'6
91'590's 815909 (P vE6's) 00°000'g:
61958t PO'L8L'LOL L £248/B08'L g1 opa 6c 00'EE0'8SL |
62597 1Zrile onesse 00200 00'085't

- 00°008'FLE 00°008° 1S - 00'c0a'vie

. 62'602'e8s 62'50Z'¢8L 8250081 [ilskelsra=rT8
ogges's BEZGL'LL 8988844 L4000 00'425'29
ZEBrL'L 200y 00'655°L - 0005t

- 00'6EY'96 00'557'98 00°£08°L 00°825'78
LeLzoL BYLET'GLE 00'6PY'SEE - 00'6¥¥'SEE
LLrr's zies'ee 0§0LE2P - 00'006'8e
PO'G0R'6E SSOLP'S 69°422'12 (Lo'86L°L) 00°0ZY'2Z

- 9ziil'e STILLE STLLLE -

. OV BO6'8S Gb'BO6'8S (bse81'e) 00'E9L'29
59°092'8 D8HLETLO SP'9t9'029 Srvilel 00°ZZ6'¢09
3B TLY'e0T LO'PZ6'8rS 66°8EE'85, Goearss 00'1£2'608
SL8EE' S80LLNE 00°050'€2 - 00'cos'at
SL'EOY'0E P LYEETL BLOLY'E0L SLLGEEE 00'622'69
00'009'S - 00°008'S - 00°008'S
JOGBLYLL EL'9PT'T 0Z'Lpy'oee (0e'898'68) 00°000'ZEY

- 09'8¥8 09'8r8 09878 -
LoLL8'es § GLOLLVEEE $ Or'Zeosaz § (oge $ 00°804'682

F1ava0AvINT LDV SINGWINTAY HELTHC
FEVHOAYS GNY SHIASNYEL WNIDEO
ADNYINYA 139and
YITIOY ENY L ~IONY VR GNNG N
SIORVHS UNY SEENIRINTSYT SANNIASY 30 SINIAILVLS SALYHVan0oD
[ HERCTERED]

ENEERTS
wbOn LIFFHX3

Aunoag |e104
sPalg0 JBYIo
seyddng [pisues
$B2IUBS eouBUSiUlEN pue liedey 'Buues;n
SEOIAIBS [RIIINOE ] PUB [BUOISSAI0 POSELIING
sapeRyg
Aproes

spunaus Jo deedn pue eie) eoL
seiddng [pisuaD
soueUBUIBN PuY Jedey 'Stues))
SSNIAIGS [RIIILTS S, PUE BUOISSAJO) POSEUOINd
sapeles
SPUNQIS) jo deexdr) pue D

SEVINBS [BIROISNT) 1101
SRRlq0 48R0
{(Ayouery pue jean} ABieuz
{se mumeN) ABlauy
soddng |eseusD)
SAVNAIGS PASEYNING SNOAURYISISIY
soUINSU
sennes flJadold PesSBEYING JaUID
SEOAIBS SoLRUBURIY pUe Jeday 'Buuesiy
SBNAIBS [EQIUOB ] PUE [BUOISSBICIH PRSELDINd
LEIS pasley/DIBILLLS ) O] TUSAES UOREDSEA Dasnun
S3PIY LOITUISUI-UDN j0 Seueleg
SeueEs
SE0IBS [ERalsnD

B4 J00UDS Joj saURUSILIR paanbay o]
spela0 180
seqddng eauRn
1eep BUptug Jo Bupse) pee
ST0INBS SOUBUSIERY puUB Jedey 'Buves|D
He1G peseX/DelBLILLLE | 0] TUSLAEY LOBIRA PEshUN
SEUBERS

SBRIIDE S JOOUDS JO) SOUBUBILEY poanbey

94



o0, LIBIHXZ

{pEZE9'6ZE € CrESRZLLBE IY'S0Z EVY 52 E62L6PEL 00iveatl'sz ASNEAXS INSHUND - SEHNLANTEXE WLOL

{£0'618'208E) ZLEPEPOEL 0L0E6Lo8PE 99LLE LS 0052802 Pl saunypuadxy panguisIpun (o),

(60629286} 80'BLOTEB'Y Aunceg |epogaIsued JYdL 1801
(00°246) 0046 eauesnsul Apqesiq uue Guoy
(60'6.49'2¢8) 80'6.9'/68 peabong-uou-ucanGuUILaY ALNDES [BRGS SYdL PasINQUISN
(00'898'926} 00'BH8'$L6 pejefipnd uoL-ESPe WewsIaY 1504
(00'102'68) 00'L02'85 pelebpna-Lou-IDoN
(00'tree'as0'e) D0'$56'850'S pateSpnq-Uou-suoingUILeD Jvd L Heyeq-u0

(pejebpng-uoN} SUOINGLILOT Jvd ), Heusg-uQ

TEZton sl LE'BSS'ZEL Y vG'125'988'Y 7565802 o0'008'S98' Y siyeuss seAcidWa - sueusy PeiEdd|BUN (BI0L
G'BOL T8 59'891'28 [ 00°'808'¥8 wswhied YIs pesnur:
ZL082'0L% ZL0sL'0LL ZLLZR0L 00°295'651 slysueg eafoldwz SUO
94T ot LPRE 00°00r'0L {oo'oog't) 00°C0Z'ZL SUBWBSNGLLIBY LORNL
8y LOO'EB 20°EZ0'E8Y'E B5'0£0'646'C preir'Le) 00esrelg'e Slyauag uHesk
96'LLEL (7441 02 tLSCLL 0TI 00'006%9L uoesLBEGT $UBUBLIOA
00000t 00'000'% 00000y uonesusdwio) wewoidiueun
ZTGT6'G ZUAES LY PGP peser'al 00'298'6bF SuTd - SuonALILED JusiieNay BLIO
L9SP0'PPE LOEP0'PE 19'2£9'92 00'B0GALE suegnquued AUNces [Bos

syeueg svkoidws - siyeusg patedojedry

6LCLL'SZE SYZ00ZL0'L CEBLLEPE L (Grarn'Lz) G091 pSZ L sealnes Loneuodsual ), Wepms eloL
LEEVS 6006 00°05% | 00000°L 0005k s18kI0 1800
BE'9LE'LL SSPLLELL £6'065'F3) {20°696'Y) 00'006'68% sejddng ucnenodsues)
29202 £2082'2 00'508'y 0coes 00'585'e so|ddng (eieuen
o8 -3 T 4 00 LLO'PE {oedr) 00'850'¢Z uaenodsues | - SSAAIAS PESEUDING SNOBUBIEOSIN
08'0EL'ED 00000'EL 0&0EL'SEL o2 00209251 SYSLD 7 5083 - (IS 'pY'I9¢S)- $IAG PEIOBIUOY
o0'sra's PO LO0'0L o1'006°g1 04'G88'S a0'1zg'el siopuaA - ('sp)S ‘A3 “ds) seoues ReseD
- 00i8eE Qo ls9'e 007459’ . sy prop-{uns 3 swoH 1egiues Juol
FOBEO'SS 20088221 ze'0Z6'zRL {89'6.0'24) 00'000'002 DG GNAUON-SIIBWARA N8| Uf PIY - SEOIMES PeDBIOD
£ 5L 28T 00'165'82 - 00°465'82 Siuewhes esea
189/9'8 L8ELE'S 89635 YL {ecoza's} 00°0i7'8L $90IAI9S S0LBUSRIE pue eday 'BulvesD
2 109 86LPT'6E 00BrE'SL - 00'6v8'51 498}, P J0ic] PESEUAING JBLI0 -LONEHAdSUE L
25°990'6 SELZL O6'E6LGL {oLvop's} 00°885'6L (2 H vew JeyiC) seuees

- 0§°678'0L 05°5¢8'02 05'8LE'SL 00'229'4S telnadg - (Roysg pue swoH
uaemag) uoneuodsury) ngnd Joj SBURES
ey Y PEEE05 99'820'805 98'480't 00°295'905 JsgnbBey - (l0oyag pue ewoy
usemeg) uoeuodsues) Iidnd J0j SBLR(ES
$ slBoL'e $ 90'B0LZE $ 9DC05'eH 006092 SBpIY {EUORIIUISUFUAN JO SeuB(es
$BOIAIBS Uopepodsuel | UepnS
HEVHOAVANT TRLOY T ERLEE] BINSWENEWY T=5and
A18YHOAYS ANY SHIISNYHL TYNIDHO
ADNTINYA 139018
IFI33H8

95



v5'LZ6 VOE L b6’ L #9690, [ {00°082 GLE)
¥B'88C 6EE L R
0L'EEa'SY (06'g0'vEE) (00v00'042) (00'000'042}

(00'c8z'sr) (00°08z'sH) (ca'osz'sy)
£V 188288 ) (ar'es1'851) {6E0rs S0 (50°E6E Lpb) {0095 vEL L
(z6°0Z% 0% 18'0L0'8BS 08 BEERS'£B0'92 GO'BBY 6AE o0'0LE'CSTS2
(867294042 AV Y] SY'ERE'0PE ZLELE 0L 00'898'LEL
(Pe'esz'edt’l) PREBLGEE'L
wa'lzz'zze'l) POLLTEZLL
(ge2ec'vet) $8°2962L
{sr'ogy2s) SYOSPEE
L5'Ga6 e PR LEF IS o/ /iy eay SL'RaL's CO'696 401

COE3rOY 0068y 0F C0'69r Y
0E'ER'SE $v9.5'66¢8 S2°85E'5Tr 54858 0000848
00'0£8's OO'DEE'S 000£8'S
37 6£'98¢2'9L 0'089'8l
SEPLSLE £205%'6LL 89°GO6 LoL 1852216 0pene'y2
pL09E'L 9BBRY L 0,058 L0'698'E

£0VS8'2 £0'PSR'L £0'PSEL

PLOET'SE rL'082'52 929982
0000664 0026998 0026838 0028529 cOB00'P2
LEBE'E L8628 LE629'2
02'S6L'2 0256412

00'BLL'ZL COELLZL 006LL'TE
0086 co'est
0L1er's S OLIERS 0LLEF'S H

TTEvVIOAVANTY LY T L[E SININANINY HEarE
131EVEONYS ONY SHTASNYML TUNIDNO
SONVINYA 1390n8
[ ERCEERE]
RRGIL

[E¥EERT

wb=0, LEIHXE

S80N0S SUIBLEBUY JBYI0 (8101
{pa1ebpng-ucu) eses jeude) wWel SPeatIY
{puny asudiaiuz) woya J8A07) 0} si0jSUBIL
selolg jenden oy Jejsuss ) -~ eaasey |eudes
{sesn) seaunos Bupueul ey

sasnypuadxe (Japun) seAc

sanueas) Jo (foueouep) sseaxy

SIUNLIANIGXS VLOL

AVILN0 T LYD TYLOL

{perebpra-uoy) seses| [epdes 1epun paunboe S19s5E (B0

uagonnsues
KBojouyos),
UORRLOUSURL )
‘seunypuadxs peINGUISIPUN
{peebprig-uou) sases| [e)des jepun paimbop siassy

S8TAISS UOIIMNSLON pue uonsiiboY SegiINe [B10L
BUpung vOS 1o BIAIBS 198(] S0} JUBLLSSBSSY
SEAIRE UoNaISUOS
sEnIABS Yoa) g Joid Yand Jawo
saciues Buusewbusaeimasiyay

SBAAJGS LOIOMISUOT Pue Uolisinboy saniioe

wewdinbg og,
“dinb3 ISU-UON-"SURLL Jueprg-puadxd 1sipun
spunous) jo deaydy) pue siey) - ‘puedxg 1spun
SENIAIAS [BIpASN-PANGUISIPLN
SIO0UIS 04 WEBIN bex-paInguIsipun
ABOOULD8 |, Ol UILRY-PEINGUISIPUN
WILLPY |BIBUBS) + SSIMIPUBLXT paInqUISIPUN
‘BAXZ B POIR(EYH ~ 'AAS ddng - ‘puadxg sipun
uolonst) - senypuadxy painguisipun
LB [RUONONNSY] JBUIQ) PUE PRIosucdsS [ooyos
U HE L E

AYILNO WLAYD

96



oo

L0968

‘ol

(oozos'sLL

)

LL'2L6°G0P'0L

90'BEPEEE'E

P P0G PRS
6955629

TELYTLIBE
00'e00'ss

00'595'089
BE'ESL'26)
26'PEE'LLE
95'268'662

e
'z

LE'B0E'CLCE

LlEig'e0y

oL

08ZOT'EEL'L

¢ TE0EL9¢00

$ 69ILL6EE'8

GOER0PEY

3

BIEBOPEY'S

GHEBCVEP'E

LEBOE'TLZ'E

T TaVHOAYINT)
A18VHOAYS
SONYIMVYA

EFEERES
b0 LIEHHXE

8Y'BBY L6

TV

{62'028'092'2)

TFE 9N

(G0'¢29'28¢4)

BINGWGNEAY
GNV SHI4SNYHL
130008

(TR

I3oand
TUNIDEO

{dwyD) spuny [eiuswiuench Jad eoueieq pung

sised s Lo peziubosal jou jusluked pie eeA Joug
{dYyD) SIUBLUGIES SPUN} [BIUSUILLIBADE 0] LODB{ISUOdeY

soueeq puny paufisseun
sarypuadse sieaf anbasqns o) pejeufises
SBOURIQUINILG PUB-IBB A
‘paublssy
sturinsy wawkodweur a1eig
eneses fousbiews
BAIBSAl BOUBUBIUIEN
supsal Ede)
[eteuad - sasesel) pie pedwt
sasmpuadxe s eek juenbasqns Joj peeubisen - sniding sseoxs
‘pepuisey

TUOYRIANEROSY

$ Of Sun[ ‘sBOUEiE] PUNd
{paleisal se) | Anr 'seoug(eq pung
seoinas Buisueuy

JAUNG Pl SenppUadxe JaLo puR sairipusdxe
180 SB2IN0S BUPUBLY JBLI0 BUE SBNUBASI JO SS8UXT

97



REVENUES:
Federal sources $
Other sources

Total revenues 3

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction:
Salaries of Teachers
Tuition
Supplies and materials

Total instruction

Support services:
Other Salaries far Instructica
Purchased professional - edecationa] services
Miscellaneous Expendiures

Total support services

Facilities acquisition and construction services:
instructional equipment

Total facilities acquisition and construction serv.

Total expenditures 5

Excess {deficiency) of revenizes over
{under) expenditures 3

Fund Balance, July 1
Prior Period Adjustment

Fund Balance, July 1 {Restated)

Fund Balance, June 30

COLTS NECK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNF 30, 2021

EXHIBIF "C-2"

BUDGET
ORIGINAL TRANSFERS/ FINAL VARIANCE

BUDGET AMENDMENTS BUDGET ACTUAL FINAL TQ AGTUAL
246,679.00 $ 318,736.00 $ 56641500 § 442,672.06 $ (122,742.04)
26,348.87 84,763.02 111,111.89 87,231.26 {23,880.83)
27302787 $ 403,499.02 $ 676,526.80 § 520,003.32 $ (146,623 57)
64,128.00 44,750.00 108,678.00 41,486.00 67,392.00

160,910.00 51,939.00 212,849.00 212,849.00
201,640.21 201,640.21 179,913.26 21,726.95
225,038.00 298 329.21 523,367.2% 434 248,25 89,118.96
8.285.00 £0,735.00 69,020.00 29.621.00 39,399.00

13,356.00 32,179.81 45,535.81 45,535.81
26,348.87 96,348.87 22,053.30 3,305.57
47,989.87 92,014.81 140,904 68 98,110.11 42794 57
12,255.00 8,828.00 3,427.00
12,255.00 12,255.00 8,828.00 3,427.00
273.027.87 $ 403,499.02 § 676,526.89 $ 541,186.36 $ 135,340.53
$ $ $ (11,283.04) § {11,283.04)

$ 26,348.87

26,548.87

$ 15,065.83
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COLTS NECK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGET 7O GAAP RECONCILIATION

NOTE TO RSI
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Note A - Explanation of difference between budgetary inflows and outflows
and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

Sources/inflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue”
from the budgetary comparison schedule

Difference - budget to GAAF:

State ald payment recoghized for budgetary purposes, not recognized for
GAAP statements until the subsequent year

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in the current year,
previously recognized for budgefary purposes.

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds.

Uses/outflows of resources

Actual amounts {budgetary basis) "total expenditures" from the
budgetary comparison schedule.

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes In fund balances - governmental funds

99

EXHIBIT "C-3"

SPECIAL
GENERAL REVENUE
FUND FUND
$30,520,857.35 $520,903.32
{115,902.00)
114,255.00
$30,528,210.35 $520,903.32
$30,688,010.81 $541,186.36
$30,688,010.81 $541,186.36




REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART I
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SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSION (GASE 68}
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EXHIBIT "L-4"

TOWNSHIP OF COLTS NECK SCHOOQL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION PART Ili
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS)

Change in benefit terms:
None

Change in assumptions:
The following assumptions were used in calculating the net pension
liability in their respective accounting periods:

Long-Term
Measurement Expected Actuarial
Date Ending Discount Rate of Experience
June 30, Rate Return Study Period
2020 7.00% 7.00% 07/01/14-06/30/18
2019 6.28% 7.00% 07/01/14-06/30/18
2018 5.66% 7.00% 07/01/11-06/30/14
2017 5.00% 7.00% 07/01/11-06/30/14
2016 3.98% 7.65% 07/01/11-06/30/14
2015 4.90% 7.90% 07/01/08-06/30/11
2014 5.39% 7.90% 07/01/08-06/30/11
2013 5.65% 7.90% 07/01/08-06/30/11

TEACHERS PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND (TPAF)

Change in benefit terms:
None

Change in assumptions:
The following assumptions were used in calculating the net pension
liability in their respective accounting periods:

Long-Term
Measurement Expected Actuarial
Date Ending Discount Rate of Experience
June 30 Rate Return Study Period
2020 5.40% 7.00% 07/01/15-06/30/18
2019 5.60% 7.00% 07/01/15-06/30/18
2018 4.86% 7.00% 07/01/12-06/30/15
2017 4.25% 7.00% 07/01/12-06/30/15
2016 3.22% 7.65% 07/01/12-06/30/15
2015 4.13% 7.90% 07/01/09-06/30/12
2014 4.68% 7.90% 07/01/09-06/30/12
2013 4.95% 7.90% 07/01/09-06/30/12
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART IV
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SCHEDULE RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER
THAN PENSIONS (GASB 75)
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EXHIBIT "M-2"

COLTS NECK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR OPEB (GASB 75)
NOTE TO RSI IV
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Change in benefit terms: None

Change in assumptions:
The following assumptions were used in calculating the net OPEB liability
in their respective accounting periods:

Measurement
Date Ending Discount
June 30, Rate
2020 2.21%
2019 3.50%
2018 3.87%
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

110




SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
DETAIL STATEMENTS
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
DETAIL STATEMENTS

113




- $ 00'896'610°1 $ 00'856'61Q0°L $

IONV Ve
L03rOdd
J3aNIdXINN
(AINO OWAW)

- 00°208°95Z 00°208'952
$ 00'LSL'E9L $ 00'1GL'E9L $
HYIA INTHANO dV3A HOHd SNOLLVIHdOYHddY

31va OL SIHNLIANISX3

1202 02 INNI dO SY

§SL0gS/E
S10Zrs/e

d1va
TYNIDIHO

siejo]
Iojeseues) [0oyag ABUSWS|T peoy Jancuos)

Jstusogiday J9)10g [00USS B|PRIWN 2A( Jepad

ANLL L2ArOUd/ENSS]

SISVE AdY139ang - STENLANIINE 103r0dd 40 INSW3LVLIS AUYANINNGS

AN SLOAFOdd TV.LIdVO

1211810 TO0HDS dIHSNMOL MO3IN SLT00

114



EXHIBIT "F-2"

COLTS NECK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SUMMARY SCHEDULE QF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
State sources - ROD grant ($71,747.00)
Total revenues (71,747.00)
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over {(under) expenditures (71,747.00)
Cther financing sources {uses):

Transfers in/{out) 45,280.00
Total other financing sources (uses) 45,280.00
Net change in fund balances (26,467.00)

$26,467.00

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending
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PROPRIETARY FUND DETAIL STATEMENTS

Proprietary funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in @ manner
similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the district's board is that the costs
of providing goods or services be financed through user charges.

FOOD SERVICES FUND: This fund provides for the operation of Food services
within the school district.

PRESCHOOL TUITION PROGRAM: This fund provides for the operation of a Preschool
Program within the school district.
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ASSETS:

Current assefs:
Cash and cash equivalents
Inventories

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Furniture, machinery and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total assels
LIABILITIES :
Current liabilities;
Interfunds payable
Uneamed revenue
Total current habilities
Total liabilities
NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets

Urrestricted (deficit)

Total net position

COLTS NECK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2021

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

EXHIBIT "G-1"

FOOD PRESCHOOL
SERVICE TUITION PROGRAM

FUND FUND TOTAL
$41,238.40 $224,366.90 $265,605.30
5,157.39 5,157.39
46,395.79 224,366.90 270,762.69
241,305.00 241,305.00
(236,246.00) (236,246.00)
5,059.00 5,059.00
51,454.79 224,366.90 275,821.69
187,326.90 187,326.90
7,889.17 37,040.00 44,929.17
7,889.17 224,366.90 232,256.07
7,889.17 224,366.90 232,256.07
5,058.00 5,059.00
38,506.62 38,506.62
$43,565.62 $43,565.62
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EXHIBIT "G-2"

COLTS NECK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services:
Tuition - individuals
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales
Salaries
Employee benefits
Supplies and materials
Management fees
Miscellanaous
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operaling income {loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
interest

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)
incomel/{loss) before contributions and fransfers

QOther financing sources:
Transfers in

Total other financing uses
Change in net position
Total net position - beginning

Total net position - ending (deficit)

FOOD PRESCHOOL
SERVICE TUITION PROGRAM
FUND FUND TOTAL

$130,820.35 130,920.35

5,500.00 5,500.00

136,420.35 136,420.35

3.442.59 3,442.59
289,611.26 289,611.26

96,637.09 96,537.09

563210 5,632.10

20,100.00 20,100.00
4,054.97 4,054.97
731.00 731.00
28,328.56 391,780.45 420,109.01
(28,328.56) {255,360.10) {283,688.66)
17.07 17.07

17.07 17.07
(28,311.49) (255,360.10) (283,671.59)
224,366.90 224,366.90

224,366.90 224,366.90
{28.311.49) (30,993.20) {59,304.69)

71.877.11 30,883.20 102,870.31
$43,565.62 $0.00 $43,565.62
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COLTS NECK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
ECR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

EXHIBIT "G-3"

FOOD PRESCHOOL
SERVICE TUITION PROGRAM
FUND FUND TOTAL
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers ($189.75) $145,944.35 $145,754.60
Payments to employees {289,611.26) (289,611.26)
Payments to employee benefits (96,537.08) {96,537.09)
Payments to suppliers {34,100.05} (5,632.10} {38,732.15)
Net cash provided by {used for) operating aclivities {34,289.80) (245,836.10) (280,125.90)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Operaling subsidies and fransfers o other funds 411,693.80 411,693.80
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 411,693.80 411,693.80
Cash flows from investing activities:
interest and dividends 17.07 17.07
Net cash provided by investing activities 17.07 17.07
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {34,272.73) 165,857.70 131,584.97
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2020 75511.13 58,5600.20 134,020.33
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2021 41,238.40 224,366.90 265,605.30
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Cperating income (loss) (28,328.56) (255,360.10) (283,688.66)
Adjustments to reconciling operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by {used for) operating activities:
Depreciation 731.00 731.00
Change in assets and liabilities:
Increase (decrease} in unearned revenue (189.75) 8,993.00 8,803.25
{Increase) decrease in accounis receivable 531.00 531.00
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (9,945.08) {9,545.08)
{Increase} decrease in inventories 3,442.59 3,442.58
(5,961.24) 9,524.00 3,562.76
Net cash provided by operating activities ($34,289.80}) {$245,836.10) {$280,125.50)
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LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES

The Long-Term schedules are used to reflect the outstanding principal balances of the long-term
liabilities of the District. This includes obligations under Serial Bonds and Capital Leases.
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STATISTICAL SECTION - UNAUDITED




COLTS NECK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION

Contents Page
Financial Trends:

These schedules contain frend information to help the reader understand how
the district's financial performance and well being have changed over time. J-1tod-4

Revenue Capacity:

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the district’s
most significant local revenue source, the property tax. J-510J-9

Debt Capacity:
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the district's current levels of outstanding debt and the district's ability to issue
additional debt in the future. J-10t0 J-13

Demographic and Economic Information:

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the district's financial activities take place. J-14to J-15

Operating Information:
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in the district’s financial report relates to the services the district
provides and the activities it performs. J-16 to J-20

Sources

Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the annual
comprehensive financial reports (ACFR) for the relevant year.
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EXHIBIT "J-g"

COLTS NECK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
UNAUDITED

Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy {(a)

Fiscal Year Ended  Taxes lLevied for the Percentage Collections in

June 30, Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Subsequent Years
2021 $ 24,391,226.00 $ 24,391,226.00 100.00% 0.00
2020 23,481,122.00 23,481,122.00 100.00% 0.00
2019 23,020,708.00 23,020,708.00 100.00% 0.00
2018 22,464,172.00 22,464,172.00 100.00% 0.00
2017 22,108,859.00 22,108,859.00 100.00% 0.00
2016 21,668,879.00 21,668,875.00 100.00% 0.00
2015 21,277,775.00 21,668,879.00 100.00% 0.00
2014 20,922,199.00 20,922,199.00 100.00% 0.00
2013 20,844,176.00 20,844,176.00 100.00% 0.00
2012 20,758,212.00 20,758,212.00 100.00% 0.00

Source: District records including the Cerlificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is
required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in is the amount voted upon or certified prior
to the end of the school year.
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Fiscal Year
Ended
June 30

2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
2012

Source: District CAFR Schedules -1, 1-2

COLTS NECK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

Governmental Activities

General
Obligation
Bonds

8,780,000.00 $ 1,625298.70 §

10,045,000.00
11,250,000.00
12,400,000.00
13,480,000.00
14,520,000.00
15,610,000.00
16,225,000.00
17,105,000.00
17,955,000.00

UNAUDITED
Capital Total

Leases District
10,405,208.70
0.00 10,045,000.00
48,475.67 11,298,475.67
95,977.62 12,495,877.62
142,525.29 13,622,525.29
237,919.27 14,757,919.27
134,036.36 15,744,036.36
216,439.36 16,441,439.36
356,066.36 17,461,086.36
259,615.83 18,214,615.83

Percentage
of Personal
Income (8}

N/A
N/A
1.39%
1.568%
1.83%
2.09%
2.28%
2.49%
2.76%
2.94%

EXHIBIT "J-10"

Per Capita (a)

N/A

1,020.73
1,150.32
1,266.08
1,379.36
1,487.69
1,5679.93
1,642.50
1,735.87
1,809.16

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
(a) See Exhibit J-14 for personal income and population data. These ratios are calculated using personal
income and population for the prior calendar year.
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COLTS NECK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
RATIOS OF NET BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
UNAUDITED

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Fiscal Year General Net General
Ended Obligation Bonded Debt
June 30, Bonds Deductions Ouistanding

2020 3 8,780,000.00 -0- 8,780,000.00
2019 10,045,000.00 -0- 10,045,000.00
2018 11,250,000.00 -0- 11,250,000.00
2017 12,400,000.00 -0- 12,400,000.00
2016 13,480,000.00 -0- 13,480,000.00
2015 14,520,000.00 -0- 14,520,000.00
2014 15,610,000.00 -0- 15,610,000.00
2013 16,225,000.00 -0~ 16,225,000.00
2012 17,105,000.00 -0- 17,105,000.00
2011 17,955,000.00 -0- 17,955,000.00

Percentage of
Actual Taxable

EXHIBIT "J-11"

Value (a} of
Property Per Capita (b)
N/A N/A

0.323% 1,020.73
0.369% 1,145.39
0.438% 1,256.33
0.482% 1,364.93
0.517% 1,463.71

0.533% 1,680.09
0.558% 1,778.78
0.577% 1,850.06
0.592% 192573

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

{a) See Exhibit J-6 for property tax daia.
(b) Population data can be found in Exhibit J-14.
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EXHIBIT "J-12"

COLTS NECK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020

UNAUDITED
Estimated Estimated Share
Gross Debt Percentage of Overlapping

Governmental Unit Outstanding Applicable (a} Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes

Colts Neck Township $  51,920,118.35 100.000% $ 51,820,119.35
Other debt

Freehoid Regional High School 10,080,000.00 8.803% 897,383.16

Monmouth County 1,283,315,000.00 2317% 29,734,408.55
Subtotal, overlapping debt 82,551,911.06
Colts Neck Township School District Direct Debt 10,080,000.00
Total direct and overlapping debt $ 92,631,911.06

Source: Township of Colts Neck Chief Financial Officer, Monmouth County Treasurer's Office and Freehold
Regiona! School District

{a) For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property

values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's taxable value that is within
the district's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total taxable value.
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EXHIBIT "J-14"

COLTS NECK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

UNAUDITED
Per Capita Unemployment
Year Population (a) Personal Income (b) Personal Income {c) Rate (d)
2020 9,841 $ N/A $ N/A 7.90%
2019 9,822 810,815,922.00 82,5651.00 2.70%
2018 9,870 789,382,860.00 79,978.00 2.90%
2017 9,876 744,601,020.00 75,395.00 3.30%
2018 9,920 706,671,040.00 71,237.00 3.70%
2015 9,965 691,670,650.00 69,410.00 4.20%
2014 10,010 660,850,190.00 66,019.00 4.70%
2013 10,059 632,721,159.00 62,901.00 3.10%
2012 10,068 620,034,044.00 61,426.00 7.60%
2011 10,115 592,361,605.00 58,355.00 7.30%

Source:

{a) Population information provided by the NJ Dept. of Labor and Workforce Development.

{b) Personal income has been estimated based upon the municipal population and per capita personal income pres:

(c) Per capita personal income by municipality estimated based upon the 2000 Census published by the US Bureau
Economic Analysis.

{d) Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept. of Labor and Workforce Development.

N/A - Not Available
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EXHIBIT "J-18"

COLTS NECK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE QF REQUIRED MAINTENANCE
UNAUDITER

UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES - REQUIRED MAINTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES

11-000-261-XXX
Schoot Facilities * Cedar Drive Conover Road Administration Conover Road
Project #(s) Total Middle Schogl Elementary School Building Primary School
2021 3 549,924.01 $ 14027514 % 154,169.85 $ 729420 % 248,184.82
2020 584,365.22 171,585.00 128,008.00 553622 278,236.00
2019 533,660.43 139,541.27 138,933.02 27,245 18 229,940.96
2018 529,490.44 146,469.59 138,576.23 6,992.08 237,452.54
2017 499,736.63 139,911.29 138,392.04 3,087.71 218,345.59
2016 520,957.00 131,904.00 125,453.00 2,538.00 261,062.00
2015 449,070.00 124,768.00 121,526.00 3,108.00 199,668.00
2014 482,277.85 134,400.17 130,752.60 5,423.99 211,701.09
2013 475,230.00 130,636.00 131,829.00 15,019.00 197,746.00
2012 392,584.00 112,346.67 110,506.67 4,242.00 165,488.67

* - School facilities as defined under EFCFA.
(N.JA.C. 6A:26-1.2 and N.J A.C. BA:26A-1.3)

Source: District records
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COLTS NECK TOWNSHIP SCHOQL DISTRICT

INSURANCE SCHEDULE
JUNE 30,2021
LUNAUDITED
COVERAGE
Package Policy - School Alliance Insurance Fund (SAIF)}
Property:
Btanket Buildings and Contents Limifs $73,154,590
Comprehensive General Liability - Aggregate 5,000,000
Comprehensive Automobile Liability 5,000,000
Inland Marine - Computers 1,088,000
Beiler Machinery Policy Limit
Excess Liability - SAIF 5,000,000
School Board Legal Liability - 1,000,000
Directors and Officers Policy
MOCSSIF/NJSBAIG
Workers Compensation - MOCSSIF/NJSBAIG 2,000,000
Group Accident - Volunteers 100,000
Student Accident - All Students (except football) 1,000,000
Public Employees Faithful Performance Blanket Bond - SAIF
Employee Dishonesty 500,000
Vincent S. Marasco - Business Administrator 250,000
John Antonides - Treasurer of School Monies 250,000

Source: District Records
Insurance Agent/Policy
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EXHIBIT “K-1"

SuPLEE, CLOONEY & CoMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122

Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535
E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education

Township of Colts Neck School District
County of Monmouth

Township of Colts Neck, New Jersey 07722

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major fund of the Township of Colts
Neck School District, County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey (the "District") as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which coliectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February
1, 2022.

internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A malerial weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the District's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.
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SurLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

Qur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal controf that might
be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

gl Uy ¢

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

K Ly I\

PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948

February 1, 2022
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EXHIBIT "K-2"

SUPLEE, CLOONEY & CoOMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122
Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail infoi@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 15-08

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education

Township of Colts Neck School District
County of Monmouth

Township of Colts Neck, New Jersey 07722

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited the Township of Colts Neck School District’s, in the County of Monmouth,
State of New Jersey (the "District”) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described
in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement
that could have a direct and material effect on each of the District's major federal and state programs
for the year ended June 30, 2021. The District’s major federal and state programs are identified in the
summary of auditor’'s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal and state statutes, regulations, and
the terms and conditions of its federal and state awards applicable to its federal and state programs.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District's major
federal and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance)
and New Jersey OMB 15-08. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB 15-08
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal or state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about the District’'s compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each

major federal and state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
District’'s compliance.
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SuPLEE, CLOONEY & CoOMPANY

Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered District’s internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal and state
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal and state program and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniforrm Guidance and New
Jersey OMB 15-08, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal and state program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance and State of New Jersey OMB 15-08. Accordingly, this report

is not suitable for any other purpose.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Kol 1) L

PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 848

February 1, 2022
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NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

EXHIBIT “K-5"
Township of Colts Neck School District
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2021

GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state
financial assistance include federal and state activity of the Board of Education,
Township of Colts Neck School District. The Board of Education is defined in
Note 1 to the Board's basic financial statements. All federal and state awards
received directly from the federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards
and state financial assistance passed through other government agencies is
included on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financials
assistance.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state
financial assistance are presented on the budgetary basis of accounting with the
exceptions of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented
using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described
in Note 1 of the Board’s basic financial statements. The information in this
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. The
District has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue
fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison statements or schedule (RSI) are
presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-
reguiated legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant
agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting,
revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have
been made.

The General fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified
accrual basis with the exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid
payment in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A.
18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes, that payment is not recognized until the
subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the last state
aid payment in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in
the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which
recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related
revenue, whereas GAAP basis does not.
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NOTE 3:

NOTE 4:

NOTE 5:

Township of Colts Neck Schooel District
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2021

RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is
$1,647 for the general fund. See the notes to the required supplementary
information for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual
basis of accounting for the general and special revenue funds. Federal awards
and state financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board’'s basic
financial statements on a GAAP basis as follows:

Federal State Total
General Fund $673,844.00 $6,914,552.09 $7,688,396.09
Special Revenue Fund 442 672.06 442 672.06
$1,116,516.06 $6,914,552.09 $8,031,068.15
GAAP Adjustment $1,647.00 $1,647.00

Total Awards and
Financial Assistance $1,116,516.06

$6,916,199.09

$8,032,715.15

ELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts
reported in the related federal and state financial reports.

OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported in the Food Distribution Program represent
current year value received and current year distributions respectively. The
amount reported as TPAF pension condributions, post-retirement medical
benefits and long-term disability insurance represents the amount paid by the
state on behalf of the district for the year ended June 30, 2021. TPAF Social
Security contributions represent the amount reimbursed by the state for the
employer’s share of Social Security contributions for TPAF members for the year
ended June 30, 2021.
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EXHIBIT “K-6"
Township of Colts Neck School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Section | — Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

(1
(2)

)

Type of Auditor's Report Issued: Unmodified
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:
(a) Material weakness identified? No

(b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses? No

Noncompliance material to basic financial statements noted? No

Federal Program(s)

N

)

)

5

(6)

Internal Control Over Major Federal Programs:
{a) Material weakness identified? No

(b} Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses? No

Type of Auditor's Report issued on compliance for major federal
program(s)? Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with section .516 (a) of Circular OMB Uniform Guidance? No

tdentification of Major Federal Program(s):

Grant
Program Number

|.D.EA. PartB 84.027

|.D.E.A. Preschool 84,173
Program Threshold Determination:

Type A Federal Program Threshold > $750,000.00

Type B Federal Program Threshold <= $750,000.00
Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under the Uniform Guidance? Yes
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Township of Colts Neck School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Section 1 — Summary of Auditor’s Results {Continued)

State Program(s)

)

(2)

(3

(4)

®)

(6)

Internal Control Over Major State Programs:
(a) Material weakness identified?

{b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Type of Auditor's Report issued on compliance for major state
program{s)?

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with N.J. OMB Circular 15-087

Identification of Major State Program(s):

Grant
Program Number
Extraordinary Aid 100-034-5120-473
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security 495-034-5095-002

Program Threshoid Determination:
Type A State Program Threshold > $750,000.00
Type B State Program Threshold <= $750,000.00

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular 15-087
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Township of Colts Neck School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Section Il — Financial Statement Audit - Reported Findings Under Government Auditing
Standards

Internal Control Findings

None Reported

Compliance Findings

None Reported

Section il - Findings and Questioned Costs Relative to Major Federal and State Programs

Federal Programs — None Reported
State Programs — None Reported
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EXHIBIT “K-7"
Township of Colts Neck School District

Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

Not Applicable
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